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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

 
To the Board of Trustees of 

 Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries: 
 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
(the Network) a not-for-profit, non-stock corporation, as of September 30, 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated 
statements of operations and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended.  These consolidated financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Network’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audits.  We did not audit the financial statements of Connecticut Healthcare 
Insurance Company, a wholly owned subsidiary, whose statement reflects total assets of $8,858,307 and $10,316,176 as of 
September 30, 2011 and 2010, and total revenues of $2,833,383 and $2,778,188 for the years then ended.  This statement was 
audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included 
for Connecticut Healthcare Insurance Company, is based solely on the report of the other auditors.   
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements are free of material misstatement.  An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a 
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Network’s internal control over financial reporting.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An 
audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall consolidated financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the 
results of its consolidated operations and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a whole.  The 
consolidating information listed within the Table of Contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the 
consolidated financial statements rather than to present the financial position, results of operations and changes in net assets of 
the individual entities and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.  Such information is the responsibility 
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 
consolidated financial statements.  The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to 
the consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the consolidating information is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.  
 

 
January 25, 2012 

10 Tower Lane
Avon, Connecticut 06001
Phone  860.678.9200

30 Main Street, Suite 215
Burlington, Vermont 05401 
Phone  802.865.9300

4600 E. Washington Street, Suite 300
Phoenix, Arizona 85034
Phone  602.252.7373



Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheets 
September 30, 2011 and 2010 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
   

2 

2011 2010

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 20,991,180$                      19,538,406$                      

Current portion of assets whose use is limited 1,504,988                          1,170,661                          

Accounts receivable, less allowance for bad debts of 

$7,209,985 in 2011 and $6,897,069 in 2010 39,643,428                        39,411,447                        

Inventory 4,228,568                          4,115,275                          

Current portion of estimated settlements due from third-party payers 432,832                             721,274                             

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,345,929                          4,951,462                          

Total current assets 71,146,925                        69,908,525                        

Assets whose use is limited - net of current portion:

Donor restricted investments 6,084,582                          8,986,028                          

Board designated investments 19,558,790                        17,476,568                        

Investments held in trust for estimated self-insurance liabilities 8,891,170                          11,193,777                        

Beneficial interest in trust assets 6,688,165                          7,003,197                          

Investments held under bond indentures 5,900,811                          4,944,754                          

Total assets whose use is limited - net of current portion 47,123,518                        49,604,324                        

Investments 16,944,697                        17,639,236                        

Investments in joint ventures 16,969,568                        17,200,900                        

Property, plant and equipment - net 96,189,597                        97,359,862                        

Other assets:

Estimated settlements due from third-party payers - net of current portion 3,163,284                          1,561,332                          

Goodwill and intangible assets - net 5,243,142                          5,530,748                          

Other - net 5,508,958                          4,531,795                          

Total other assets 13,915,384                        11,623,875                        

Total assets 262,289,689$                    263,336,722$                    

Current liabilities:

Lines of credit 8,272,642$                        6,905,000$                        

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 23,618,145                        26,271,706                        

Current portion of long-term debt and capital lease obligations 5,652,447                          5,089,518                          

Current portion of estimated settlements due to third-party payers 2,104,534                          423,893                             

Current portion of accrued pension and other postretirement benefits 11,329,346                        7,000,050                          

Other current liabilities 5,700,671                          4,650,399                          

Total current liabilities 56,677,785                        50,340,566                        

Long-term debt and capital lease obligations, net of current portion 86,635,165                        81,733,082                        

Estimated self-insurance liabilities 6,311,338                          7,046,597                          

Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits 56,772,305                        51,990,994                        

Estimated settlements due to third-party payers, net of current portion 335,416                             361,253                             

Other liabilities 396,023                             387,747                             

Total liabilities 207,128,032                      191,860,239                      

Net assets:

Unrestricted 41,815,956                        54,654,325                        

Temporarily restricted 2,249,963                          5,411,388                          

Permanently restricted 11,095,738                        11,410,770                        

Total net assets 55,161,657                        71,476,483                        

Total liabilities and net assets 262,289,689$                    263,336,722$                    

Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
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Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets 

For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 
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2011 2010
Revenues:

Net patient service revenues 261,348,876$      262,817,891$      
Contributions 732,256               1,747,825            
Other revenues 18,107,930          15,539,915          
Net assets released from restrictions

used for operations 801,123               539,109               
Total revenues 280,990,185        280,644,740        

Expenses:
Salaries and wages 134,218,139        131,341,594        
Fringe benefits 35,696,855          32,963,007          
Supplies and other expenses 83,802,696          81,274,486          
Provision for bad debts 11,106,480          11,481,356          
Depreciation and amortization 11,898,918          12,555,983          
Interest and financing costs 4,224,420            4,489,986            

Total expenses 280,947,508        274,106,412        

Income from operations 42,677                 6,538,328            

Non-operating losses (1,341,596)           (1,785,503)           

(Deficiency) excess of revenue over expenses (1,298,919)$        4,752,825$         
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Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (continued) 

For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 
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2011 2010
Unrestricted net assets:

(Deficiency) excess of revenues over expenses (1,298,919)$         4,752,825$          
Change in unrealized (depreciation) appreciation on investments (2,428,922)           2,213,159            
Change in unrealized depreciation on joint venture (248,292)              -                       
Other changes -                       (786,524)              
Net change in interest rate swap agreements 1,677,331            (608,544)              
Net assets released from restrictions

for capital acquisitions 3,007,796            108,055               

Transfers between asset classes 67,091                 -                       
Pension and postretirement related adjustments (13,614,453)         (10,610,787)         

Change in unrestricted net assets (12,838,368)         (4,931,816)           
 
Temporarily restricted net assets:

Contributions 735,462               847,706               
Investment income 68,560                 42,255                 
Net assets released from restrictions for operations (801,123)              (539,109)              
Net assets released from restrictions 

for capital acquisitions (3,007,796)           (108,055)              
Transfers between asset classes (67,091)                -                       
Change in unrealized (depreciation) appreciation

on investments (89,438)                513,974               

Change in temporarily restricted net assets (3,161,426)           756,771               

Permanently restricted net assets:
Contributions -                       8,524                   
Change in beneficial interest in trust assets (315,032)              209,328               

Change in permanently restricted net assets (315,032)              217,852               

Change in net assets (16,314,826)         (3,957,193)           

Net assets, beginning of year 71,476,483          75,433,676          

Net assets, end of year 55,161,657$        71,476,483$        

 



Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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2011 2010
Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets (16,314,826)$                  (3,957,193)$                    
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to

 net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 11,898,918                     12,555,983                     
Amortization of bond costs related to Series B defeasement 416,928                          -                                  
Provision for bad debts 11,106,480                     11,481,356                     
Change in unrealized depreciation (appreciation) on investments 2,518,360                       (2,727,133)                      
Change in unrealized depreciation on joint venture 248,292                          -                                  
Loss on disposals of fixed assets 65,000                            -                                  
Change in beneficial interest in trust assets 315,032                          (209,328)                         
Income on investments in joint ventures (1,806,166)                      (2,249,537)                      
Pension and postretirement related adjustments 13,614,453                     10,610,787                     
Permanently restricted contributions -                                  (8,524)                             
Change in pledges receivable (142,060)                         (47,464)                           
Change in interest rate swap (1,259,369)                      608,544                          

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (11,338,461)                    (12,508,831)                    
Inventory (113,293)                         (693,765)                         
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 605,533                          587,768                          
Goodwill and intangible assets - net 287,606                          (1,170,448)                      
Other - net (714,361)                         924,824                          
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 140,035                          (1,942,791)                      
Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits (4,503,846)                      (1,816,763)                      
Estimated settlements to/from third-party payers 341,294                          1,065,746                       
Estimated self-insurance liabilities (735,259)                         4,462                              
Other current liabilities 1,050,272                       (332,297)                         
Other liabilities 8,276                              (68,308)                           

Net cash provided by operating activities 5,688,838                       10,107,088                     

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (10,620,037)                    (7,394,458)                      
Sales (purchases) of investments, net 7,626                              (8,585,964)                      
Investment in joint ventures (182,838)                         (1,235,348)                      
Distributions from joint ventures 1,972,044                       1,153,189                       

Net cash used in investing activities (8,823,205)                      (16,062,581)                    

Cash flows from financing activities:
Principal payments on long-term debt (22,586,335)                    (4,421,172)                      
Net borrowings on line of credit 1,367,642                       1,905,000                       
Payments for bond issuance costs (711,286)                         -                                  
Payment for termination of interest rate swaps (1,534,227)                      -                                  
Permanently restricted contributions -                                  8,524                              
Proceeds from borrowings 28,051,347                     -                                  

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 4,587,141                       (2,507,648)                      

Change in cash and cash equivalents 1,452,774                       (8,463,141)                      

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 19,538,406                     28,001,547                     

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 20,991,180$                   19,538,406$                   

Cash paid for interest 4,289,195$                     4,995,959$                     

Equipment acquisitions under capital lease arrangements 7,858,364$                     1,214,287$                     



Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 
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Note 1 - Organization 
 
Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. (ECHN) and Subsidiaries (collectively the Network) is a not-for-profit, 
locally governed health system created on September 12, 1995, through the merger of the corporate parents of 
Manchester Memorial Hospital and Rockville General Hospital, Inc.  Its purpose is to provide a health care system 
for the communities it serves, with quality medical care at a reasonable cost; to foster an environment conducive to 
health and well-being, whether in the home or in the community; and to enable the health care system to expand to 
meet the future needs of its communities.  ECHN, through its subsidiaries (or members), provides health care, 
health education, and community services to residents of more than 19 towns in eastern Connecticut, regardless of 
their ability to pay. 
 
ECHN is the sole member or shareholder of the following subsidiaries: 
 
The Manchester Memorial Hospital (MMH) - MMH is a not-for-profit hospital with 249 licensed beds, located in 
Manchester, Connecticut.  MMH, which admitted its first patient in 1920, is a short-term, acute-care general 
hospital, which provides inpatient, outpatient, and emergency care services to the residents of Manchester and 19 
nearby towns. 
 
The Rockville General Hospital, Inc. (RGH) - RGH is a not-for-profit hospital with 102 licensed beds, located in 
the Rockville section of Vernon, Connecticut.  RGH, which admitted its first patient in 1921, is a short-term, acute-
care general hospital, which provides inpatient, outpatient, and emergency care services for residents of Tolland 
County and nearby towns, for a total service area of 19 towns. 
 
ECHN ElderCare Services, Inc. (EES) - EES is a not-for-profit, skilled nursing facility with 130 licensed beds and 
physical, occupational and speech rehabilitation services located in Tolland, Connecticut. 
 
ECHN Community Healthcare Foundation, Inc. (ECHF) - ECHF is a not-for-profit organization whose purpose 
is to raise funds on behalf of ECHN and its not-for-profit subsidiaries.  It was established in 2000, when the fund-
raising efforts of ECHN were consolidated into a single not-for-profit foundation.  ECHF focuses primarily on the 
capital and program needs of ECHN and its not-for-profit subsidiaries. 
 
ECHN Wellness Services, Inc. d/b/a Women’s Center for Wellness (EWS) - EWS is a not-for-profit organization 
that currently operates a facility located in South Windsor, Connecticut, which offers health services to meet the 
special needs of women.  Effective July 1, 2011, EWS merged into RGH. 
 
ECHN Health Services, Inc. d/b/a Eastern Connecticut Medical Professionals (EHS) - EHS is a not-for-profit 
organization that currently operates physician office practices in the Network’s service area and a hospitalist 
program that serves MMH and RGH.  Its mission allows it to operate other not-for-profit, separately incorporated 
allied health ventures. 
 
ECHN Enterprises, Inc. (Enterprises) - Enterprises is a for-profit organization formed under the laws of the State 
of Connecticut, with ECHN as the sole shareholder.  Enterprises owns, leases and has an interest in real estate to 
support the mission and vision for ECHN.  It is also the parent corporation of Haynes Street Property 
Management, LLC (HSPM).  HSPM is a for-profit, limited liability company formed under the laws of the State of 
Connecticut, which manages the Glastonbury Wellness Center and sublets space to various MMH departments and 
physician offices, as well as to EHS. 
 
Connecticut Healthcare Insurance Company (CHIC) - CHIC, a captive insurance company, provides hospital and 
physician professional and general liability coverage to MMH, RGH, EES, and all other subsidiaries. 



Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 
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Note 1 - Organization (continued) 
 
ECHN and each of its subsidiaries, except for Enterprises and CHIC, are separate Connecticut not-for-profit 
corporations, qualified as exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC) and 
governed by separate Boards of Trustees (the Board) - although the membership of the ECHN, MMH and RGH 
boards are currently identical.  ECHN, acting through its Board of Trustees, is the sole member of each of its 
members.  ECHN has various powers with regard to each of its members, which include approving all operating 
and capital budgets; controlling the investment of funds, location of services, agreements and transactions, and 
affiliations; controlling changes, amendments, or restatements of certificates of incorporation and bylaws; electing 
trustees and officers; appointing committees; adopting a system-wide vision and strategic plans; and approving debt 
borrowings. 
 
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
Basis of Presentation - The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), as promulgated by the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC).  The consolidated 
financial statements include the accounts of ECHN and its subsidiaries.  Significant intercompany accounts and 
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  The assets of any member of the consolidated group may not 
be available to meet the obligations of other members in the group. 
 
Recent Accounting Pronouncements - In January 2010, the FASB issued guidance that clarifies and requires new 
disclosures about fair value measurements.  The clarifications and requirement to disclose the amounts and reasons 
for significant transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, as well as significant transfers in and out of Level 3 of the 
fair value hierarchy, is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009.  The 
new guidance also requires that purchases, sales, issuances, and settlements be presented gross in the Level 3 
reconciliation and that requirement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010 and for interim 
periods within those years, with early adoption permitted.  Since this new guidance only amends the disclosure 
requirements, it did not impact the Network’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 
 
In August 2010, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2010-23, “Health Care Entities (Topic 
954): Measuring Charity Care for Disclosure”.  ASU No. 2010-23 is intended to reduce the diversity in practice 
regarding the measurement basis used in the disclosure of charity care.  ASU No. 2010-23 requires that cost be used 
as the measurement basis for charity care disclosure purposes and that cost be identified as the direct or indirect 
cost of providing the charity care and requires disclosure of the method used to identify or determine such costs.  
The adoption of this new guidance is effective for the Network beginning October 1, 2011. 
 
In August 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-24, “Health Care Entities (Topic 954) Presentation of Insurance 
Claims and Related Insurance Recoveries”.  ASU No. 2010-24 is intended to address current diversity in practice 
to the accounting by healthcare entities for medical malpractice claims and similar liabilities and their related 
anticipated insurance recoveries.  Most healthcare entities have netted anticipated insurance recoveries against the 
related accrued liability, although some entities have presented the anticipated insurance recovery and related 
liability on a gross basis.  The existing guidance does not permit offsetting of conditional or unconditional liabilities 
with anticipated insurance recoveries from third parties.  This update clarifies that a healthcare entity should not net 
insurance recoveries against related claim liability.  Additionally, the amount of the claim liability should be 
determined without consideration of insurance recoveries.  The adoption of this new guidance is effective for the 
Network beginning October 1, 2011. 
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For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
In July 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-07, “Health Care Entities (Topic 954), Presentation and Disclosure 
of Patient Service Revenue, Provision for Bad Debts and the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for Certain Health 
Care Entities”, which requires a healthcare entity to change the presentation of their statement of operations by 
reclassifying the provision for bad debts associated with patient service revenue from an operating expense to a 
deduction from patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances and discounts).  Additionally, enhanced 
disclosures about an entity’s policies for recognizing revenue, assessing bad debts, as well as qualitative and 
quantitative information about changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts are required.  The adoption of ASU 
2011-07 is effective for the Network beginning October 1, 2012. 
 
Use of Estimates - The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements.  Estimates also 
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from 
those estimates.   
 
The Network’s significant estimates relate to the valuation of investments and interest rate swap agreements, 
allowance for doubtful patient accounts receivable, contractual allowances on patient accounts receivable, due from 
third parties, self-insurance liabilities, estimated settlements due to and from third parties, conditional asset 
retirement obligations, postretirement and pension benefit costs and the related obligations. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents - The Network considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities of three 
months or less at date of purchase to be cash equivalents, excluding amounts whose use is limited or restricted by 
Board designation or other arrangements under trust agreements.  Cash equivalents include money market funds.  
Cash balances maintained at banks are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).  At times, the 
Network maintains cash balances that are in excess of the $250,000 insured FDIC limits.  The Network maintains 
its cash at various banks and it is the Network’s policy to monitor the banks’ financial strength on an ongoing basis. 
 
Money market funds are not insured by the FDIC and are not a risk-free investment.  Money market funds invest in 
a variety of instruments including mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities.  Although a money market fund 
seeks to preserve its $1 per share value, it is possible that a money market fund’s value can decrease below $1 per 
share. 
 
Net Assets - Resources are reported for accounting purposes in separate classes of net assets based on the existence 
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  In the accompanying consolidated financial statements, net assets that 
have similar characteristics have been combined as follows: 
 

Permanently Restricted - Net assets subject to explicit donor imposed stipulations that they be maintained 
by the Network in perpetuity are classified as permanently restricted.  Such permanently restricted net 
assets include endowment funds and MMH’s and RGH’s share of their beneficial interest in trust assets 
held by third parties.  Generally, the donors of these assets permit the members of ECHN to use all or part 
of the investment return on these assets for operating purposes. 
 
Temporarily Restricted - Net assets whose use by the Network is subject to explicit donor imposed 
stipulations that can be fulfilled upon incurrence of expenditures by the Network pursuant to those 
stipulations or that expire by the passage of time are classified as temporarily restricted. 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

Unrestricted - Net assets that are not subject to explicit donor-imposed stipulations are classified as 
unrestricted.  Unrestricted net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action of the Board or may 
otherwise be limited by contractual agreements with outside parties; such designated assets are classified as 
assets whose use is limited in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 

 
Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets, unless use of the related assets is limited by donor 
imposed restrictions.  Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets.  Gains and losses on 
investments and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets, unless 
their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or by law.  Expirations of temporary restrictions on net assets, 
that is, the donor imposed stipulated purpose has been accomplished and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed, 
are reported as reclassifications between the applicable classes of net assets. 
 
Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues at the date the promise is 
received.  Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value. Contributions to be 
received after one year are discounted at a rate commensurate with the risks involved.  Amortization of the discount 
is included in other revenue.  Contributions restricted for the acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment are 
reported as temporarily restricted support.  These contributions are reclassified to unrestricted net assets when the 
capital asset is acquired or constructed and placed in service. 
 
Assets Whose Use is Limited - Assets whose use is limited primarily include cash and investments held by trustees 
under indenture agreements, cash and investments held for estimated self-insurance liabilities, Board designated 
investments, which include endowments, cash and investments set aside by the Board for future capital 
improvements over which the Board retains control and may at its discretion subsequently use for other purposes; 
beneficial interests in trust assets, which are donor restricted and other restricted investments.  Amounts required to 
meet current liabilities of the Network have been classified as current assets in the consolidated balance sheets as of 
September 30, 2011 and 2010. 
 
The income earned on restricted funds is generally available for operations of the Network and is recorded as 
revenue in unrestricted net assets, unless restricted by the donor or to pay future annuity obligations, at which time 
the income is added to the appropriate restricted net asset balance.  However, if a specific gift instrument explicitly 
requires the permanent reinvestment of appreciation, or a portion thereof, such reinvested amounts are classified 
within permanently restricted net assets.  There were no gifts with reinvestment restrictions for the years ended 
September 30, 2011 and 2010. 
 
Assets received as donations or bequests are recorded as contributions on the date received at the estimated fair 
value.  The average cost method is used to determine realized gains or losses on sales of marketable equity 
securities. 
 
Beneficial Interest in Trust Assets - MMH and RGH have been named sole or participating beneficiaries in several 
perpetual trusts, for which third parties act as the trustee.  Under the terms of these trusts, MMH and RGH have the 
irrevocable right to receive the income earned on the trust assets held in perpetuity.  The estimated present value of 
the future payments to MMH and RGH is recorded at the fair value of the assets held in the trust as beneficial 
interest in trust assets in the respective balance sheets of MMH and RGH and are permanently restricted as to use. 
 
The income from the trusts is included in the change in interest in net assets of ECHF as unrestricted and 
temporarily restricted support.  Fluctuations in the fair value of the trust assets are recognized as changes in 
permanently restricted net assets.  MMH and RGH record their beneficial interest in trust assets when they are 
notified of the existence of the trust or when information becomes available to record the fair value of the trust 
assets. 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Investments - The Network’s investment portfolio is classified as available for sale, with unrealized gains and 
losses excluded in excess of revenues over expenses, unless the losses are deemed to be other than temporary.  
Investments with readily determinable fair values are measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets. 
 
Investment income or loss (including realized gains and losses on investments, interest, and dividends) is included 
in the excess of revenues over expenses, unless the income or loss is restricted by donor or law. 
 
Other-Than-Temporary Impairments on Investments - The Network accounts for other than temporary 
impairments in accordance with FASB ASC 320-10 and continually reviews its securities for impairment 
conditions, which could indicate that an other than temporary decline in market value has occurred.  In conducting 
this review, numerous factors are considered, which include specific information pertaining to an individual 
company or a particular industry, general market conditions that reflect prospects for the economy as a whole, and 
the ability and intent to hold securities until recovery.  The carrying value of investments is reduced to its estimated 
realizable value if a decline in fair value is considered to be other-than-temporary.  The Network has recorded an 
impairment charge of $91,329 and $21,273 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related 
to investments held by CHIC.   
 
Property, Plant and Equipment - Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or, in the case of donated 
property, at fair value at the date of the gift, less accumulated depreciation and amortization.  Major improvements 
and betterments to existing plant and equipment are capitalized.  Expenditures for maintenance and repairs that do 
not extend the lives of the applicable assets are charged to expense as incurred.  Upon disposition or retirement of 
property, plant and equipment, the cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization are eliminated from 
the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of consolidated operations. 
 
Depreciation expense is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

Buildings 10-40 years
Building improvements 5-40 years
Machinery and equipment 3-15 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-20 years

 
Depreciation expense was $11,054,024 and $11,455,750 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. 
 
Equipment under capital leases is amortized utilizing the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or 
the estimated useful life of the equipment.  Equipment under capital leases, amortization totaling $491,431 and 
$355,739 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively, is included in depreciation and 
amortization expense in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets.   
 
Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the construction period of capital assets is capitalized as a 
component of the cost of acquiring those assets. 
 
Physician loan amortization totaling $127,780 and $596,537 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively, is included within depreciation and amortization in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations and changes in net assets. 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Gifts of property and equipment are reported as unrestricted support, and are excluded from the excess of revenues 
over expenses, unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used.  Gifts of property 
and equipment with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or other assets 
that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support.  Absent explicit donor 
stipulations about how long the property and equipment must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are 
reported as released from restrictions when the donated or acquired property and equipment assets are placed in 
service. 
 
Investments in Joint Ventures - The Network has invested in several joint ventures with other area hospitals, 
which are accounted for under the equity method of accounting.  These joint ventures as of September 30, 2011 and 
2010 include the Network’s investments in the following: 
 

Ownership Ownership
2011 Percentage 2010 Percentage

Northeast Regional Radiation Oncology 
Network, Inc. 5,638,135$         50 % 5,620,034$         50 %

Tolland Imaging Center 79,289                70          59,168                70          
Medical Practice Partners, LLC 121,637              50          89,156                50          
Metro Wheelchair Service Inc. 126,460              50          197,998              50          
Ambulance Service of Manchester, LLC 3,508,000           50          3,727,619           50          
Aetna Ambulance Service Inc. 1,385,137           50          1,273,744           50          
Visiting Nurse and Health Services 

of Connecticut Inc. 3,917,130           50          3,950,422           50          
Evergreen Endoscopy Center, LLC 381,284              50          610,000              50          
Haynes Street Medical Associates 196,841              23          155,513              23          
Haynes Street Medical Associates II 241,830              15          417,372              20          
Evergreen Imaging Center, LLC 358,201              50          302,247              50          
Evergreen Medical Associates, LLC 301,789              20          311,207              20          
Evergreen Medical Associates II, LLC 692,833              25          452,758              25          

           Total joint venture assets 16,948,566         17,167,238         

Other miscellaneous assets 21,002                33,662                

           Total investments in joint ventures 16,969,568$      17,200,900$       

 
Distributions from these joint ventures totaled $1,972,044 and $1,153,189 for the years ended September 30, 2011 
and 2010, respectively.  ECHN’s share of the earnings of the joint ventures is reported within other revenues and 
are $1,806,166 and $2,249,537 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Summarized financial information from the financial statements of these organizations as of September 30, 2011 
and 2010 and for the years then ended, is as follows: 
 

Excess 

(Deficiency) of

Total Net Change in Revenues

2011 Assets Assets Net Assets Over Expenses

Northeast Regional Radiation Oncology 

Network, Inc. 14,987,787$        11,276,270$        (24,696)$              (24,809)$              

Metro Wheelchair Service Inc. 354,985$             252,921$             (143,075)$            143,075$             

Ambulance Service of Manchester, LLC 8,179,093$          7,016,846$          (438,482)$            2,161,516$          

Aetna Ambulance Service Inc. 3,613,084$          2,770,274$          222,786$             222,786$             

Visiting Nurse and Health Services of 

Connecticut Inc. 10,719,930$        7,834,262$          (66,582)$              217,304$             

Haynes Street Medical Associates 2,210,782$          843,825$             179,777$             237,606$             

Haynes Street Medical Associates II 6,664,534$          1,386,357$          (355,210)$            (242,710)$            

Evergreen Endoscopy Center, LLC 2,511,718$          762,568$             (396,530)$            668,513$             

Evergreen Imaging Center, LLC 1,210,664$          716,401$             111,908$             232,726$             

Evergreen Medical Associates, LLC 5,713,159$          1,491,529$          (47,090)$              117,910$             

Evergreen Medical Associates II, LLC 9,139,988$          2,846,751$          40,300$               113,300$             

Tolland Imaging Center 1,696,739$          113,270$             28,745$               (52,019)$              

Medical Practice Partners, LLC 1,459,023$          243,273$             64,960$               44,960$               

Excess

(Deficiency) of

Total Net Change in Revenues

2010 Assets Assets Net Assets Over Expenses

Northeast Regional Radiation Oncology 

Network, Inc. 15,112,267$        11,300,966$        1,285,382$          1,307,271$          

Metro Wheelchair Service Inc. 526,202$             395,996$             (1,661)$                2,290$                 

Ambulance Service of Manchester, LLC 8,408,808$          7,455,328$          486,824$             1,065,845$          

Aetna Ambulance Service Inc. 3,508,883$          2,547,488$          372,207$             111,924$             

Visiting Nurse and Health Services of 

Connecticut Inc. 11,135,638$        7,900,844$          1,096,373$          867,959$             

Haynes Street Medical Associates 2,638,493$          664,048$             (20,647)$              50,353$               

Haynes Street Medical Associates II 8,649,489$          1,741,567$          49,558$               49,558$               

Evergreen Endoscopy Center, LLC 2,820,967$          1,159,098$          736,863$             754,111$             

Evergreen Imaging Center, LLC 1,006,768$          604,493$             173,045$             164,865$             

Evergreen Medical Associates, LLC 5,836,977$          1,538,619$          (35,247)$              174,753$             

Evergreen Medical Associates II, LLC 7,378,151$          2,806,451$          1,290,120$          26,120$               

Tolland Imaging Center 1,899,329$          84,525$               113,804$             2,172$                 

Medical Practice Partners, LLC 1,033,104$          178,313$             178,313$             (521,687)$            
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Unamortized Bond Issue Costs - Financing costs associated with the issuance of long-term debt are amortized over 
the term of the bonds using the effective interest method.  Amortization is included in interest and financing costs 
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, and the unamortized carrying 
value is recorded within other - net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
 
Intangible Assets - Intangible assets, principally license enhancements and goodwill, are amortized over the life of 
the respective intangible property.  On average, this amortization period for license enhancements and goodwill is 
18 and 5 years, respectively.  Amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets and the unamortized carrying value is recorded 
within goodwill and intangible assets - net in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.  Any residual value 
remaining after the amortization period is considered insignificant. 
 
Deferred Revenue - Deferred revenue represents payments received for services to be rendered in the next fiscal 
year and is recorded within other current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
 
(Deficiency) Excess of Revenues Over Expenses - The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net 
assets include (deficiency) excess of revenues over expenses.  Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are 
excluded from the (deficiency) excess of revenues over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include the 
changes in unrealized appreciation (depreciation) on investments; net change in fair value of interest rate swap that 
qualifies for hedge accounting; net assets released from restrictions used for capital acquisitions; pension and 
postretirement-related adjustments; and other changes in net assets. 
 
For purposes of display, transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to providing of 
health care services are reported as operating revenue and operating expenses.  Operating revenues include net 
patient service revenues, grant income, and investment income.  Peripheral or incidental transactions are reported as 
non-operating gains, losses, and expenses.  Non-operating gains and losses include investment income and 
expenses related to property management, realized gains and losses on sales of investments, losses recognized on 
investments representing declines in value considered to be other-than-temporary in nature, gains and losses related 
to the termination of certain swap instruments, changes in the fair values of interest rate swaps that do not qualify 
for hedge accounting (net interest expense) and the costs associated with pursuing business combinations. 
 
Charity Care - MMH and RGH provide care to patients who meet certain criteria under their charity care policies 
without charge or at amounts less than its established and contractual rates.  The hospitals do not pursue collection 
of amounts determined to qualify as charity care; as such, these amounts are not reported as revenue.   
 
Net Patient Service Revenues - Net patient service revenues are reported at the estimated net realizable amounts 
from patients, third-party payers, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments 
under reimbursement agreements with third-party payers.  Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated 
basis in the period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are 
determined. 
 
Contracts, laws, and regulations governing Medicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross, and the uncompensated care pool 
programs are complex and subject to interpretation.  As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility that 
recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.  The Network records adjustments in 
amounts accrued for estimated settlements related to prior years.   
 
A portion of the accrual for estimated settlements with third-party payers has been classified as long-term because 
such amounts, by their nature or by virtue of regulation or legislation, are not expected to be paid within one year. 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
MMH and RGH have agreements with third-party payers that provide for payments at amounts different from their 
established rates.  A summary of the payment agreements with major third-party payers is as follows: 
 

Medicare - Acute care hospitals are subject to a federal prospective payment system for most Medicare 
inpatient hospital services and for certain outpatient services.  Under this prospective payment 
methodology, Medicare pays a prospectively determined per-discharge or per-visit rate for non-physician 
services.  These rates vary according to the Diagnosis Related Group or Ambulatory Payment 
Classification of each patient. 
 
Inpatient rehabilitation and mental health services, outpatient services, capital and medical education costs 
related to Medicare beneficiaries are paid based on a prospective payment system, subject to certain 
limitations.  The Hospital is reimbursed for cost-reimbursement for certain items at a tentative rate, with 
final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports and audits thereof by the Medicare 
fiscal intermediary.  Certain other outpatient services are reimbursed according to fee screens. 
 
Medicaid - Inpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at prospectively 
determined rates per discharge.  Outpatient services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are 
reimbursed under a cost-reimbursement methodology.  The hospitals are reimbursed at a tentative rate, with 
final settlement determined after submission of annual cost reports by the hospitals. 

 
Other Payers - The Network has also entered into payment agreements with certain commercial insurance 
carriers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations.  The basis for payment 
under these agreements includes rates per discharge, discounts from established charges, per diem rates, 
and fee schedule payments. 
 

Health Care Industry - The health care industry is subject to numerous laws and regulations of federal, state, and 
local governments.  These laws and regulations include, but are not limited to, matters such as licensure, 
accreditation, government health care program participation requirements, reimbursement for patient services, and 
Medicare and Medicaid fraud and abuse.  Government activity has increased with respect to investigations and 
allegations concerning possible violations of fraud and abuse statutes and regulations by health care providers.  
Violations of these laws and regulations could result in expulsion from government health care programs together 
with the imposition of significant fines and penalties, as well as significant repayments for patient services 
previously billed.   
 
Management believes that the Network is in compliance with fraud and abuse regulations, as well as other 
applicable government laws and regulations.  Compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to further 
governmental review and interpretation, as well as regulatory actions unknown or unasserted at this time. 
 
Future Operations - Current trends in the health care industry include mergers and other forms of affiliations 
among providers, increasing shifts to managed care, overall reduction in inpatient average length of stay, 
increasingly restrictive reimbursement policies by governmental and private payers, and the prospect of significant 
changes in legislation at the state and national level.  Management cannot assess or project the ultimate effect of 
these or other items on the future operations of the Network. 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Interest in Net Assets of ECHF - ECHF was formed as a not-for-profit organization to supervise the development 
activities and engage in investment activities for the benefit of all of the ECHN subsidiaries.  ECHN is the sole 
member of ECHF and the ECHF’s Board of Directors is appointed by ECHN.  ECHN subsidiaries follow the 
provisions of ASC 958 (FASB Statement No. 136, Transfers of Assets to a Not-for-Profit Organization or 
Charitable Trust That Raises or Holds Contributions for Others).  Accordingly, the separate ECHN members 
record their interest in the net assets of ECHF in their separate financial statements.  These amounts have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 
 
Income Taxes - ECHN and its subsidiaries, except for Enterprises and CHIC, are in compliance with the provisions 
of Internal Revenue Code (the Code) Sec. 501(c)(3) and are exempt from federal tax under IRC Sec. 501(a).  At 
times, the Network is involved with activities that subject minor amounts of unrelated business federal income tax, 
which are paid as they come due in accordance with the Code and the regulations there under.  Such amounts are 
insignificant to the Network’s consolidated financial statements.   
 
The Network accounts for uncertain tax positions in accordance with provisions of FASB ASC 740, “Income 
Taxes” which provides a framework for how companies should recognize, measure, present and disclose uncertain 
tax positions in their financial statements.  The Network may recognize the tax benefit from an uncertain tax 
position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be sustained on examination by the taxing 
authorities, based on the technical merits of the position.  The Network does not have any uncertain tax positions as 
of September 30, 2011 and 2010.  As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Network did not record any penalties or 
interest associated with uncertain tax positions.  Generally, the Network’s prior three tax years are open and subject 
to examination by the Internal Revenue Service. 
 
Enterprise and its subsidiaries are for-profit entities subject to federal and state taxes.  For these entities, ECHN 
applies the provisions of FASB ASC 740.  The tax provisions, and related tax assets and liabilities, are not material.  
CHIC has received an undertaking from the Cayman Islands government exempting it from all local income, 
profits, and capital gains taxes until January 3, 2026.  No such taxes are currently levied in the Cayman Islands.  
Accordingly, no provision for federal income taxes has been recorded in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
Asset Retirement Obligations - The Network recognizes a liability for the fair value of a conditional asset 
retirement obligation if the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated.  Uncertainty about the timing 
and/or method of settlement of a conditional asset retirement obligation is factored into the measurement of the 
liability when sufficient information exists.  The types of asset retirement obligations that the Network recognizes 
are those for which the Network has a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity, however, the timing 
and/or method of settling the obligation are conditional on a future event that may or may not be within its control.   
 
The fair value of a liability for the legal obligation associated with an asset retirement is recorded in the period in 
which the obligation is incurred.  When the liability is initially recorded, the cost of the asset retirement is 
capitalized.  As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Network has recognized $391,870 and $383,247, respectively, 
as an obligation to remove asbestos from various buildings upon retirement.  This total is included in the 
consolidated balance sheets within other liabilities. 
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Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans - The Network recognizes the 
overfunded or underfunded status of their defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans 
(collectively, postretirement benefit plans) in the consolidated balance sheets as an asset or liability.  The Network 
recognizes changes in the funded status of the plans in the year in which the changes occur as a change in 
unrestricted net assets presented below the excess of revenues over expenses in its consolidated statements of 
operations and changes in net assets. 
 
Inventory - The Network records inventory at cost using the first-in, first-out method. 
 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets - Long-lived assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  Long-lived assets to be 
disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value, less cost to sell. 
 
Estimated Self-Insurance Liabilities - The liabilities for outstanding losses and loss related expenses, and the 
related provision for losses and loss related expenses include estimates for malpractice losses, general liability, and 
workers’ compensation incurred but not reported claims, as well as losses pending settlement.  Such liabilities are 
necessarily based on estimates and, while management believes the amounts provided are adequate, the ultimate 
liability may be in excess of or less than the amounts provided.  As a result, there is at least a reasonable possibility 
that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.  The methods for making such estimates 
and the resulting liability are actuarially reviewed on an annual basis, and any adjustments required are reflected in 
operations in the current period.  The current portion of estimated self-insurance liabilities is recorded within other 
current liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk - Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Network to concentration of 
credit risk, consist of accounts receivable, investments, including temporary cash investments, marketable equity 
and debt securities, mutual funds, government securities and interest rate swap agreements.  The Network receives 
a significant portion of its payments for services rendered from a limited number of government and commercial 
third-party payers, including Medicare (a federal program), Medicaid (a State of Connecticut program), and various 
health insurance companies. 
 
Interest Rate Swap Agreements - Interest rate swap agreements are recognized as either assets or liabilities in the 
consolidated balance sheet at fair value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them.  Changes in the fair 
value of interest rate swap agreements are recognized in non-operating losses or if designated and effective as 
hedge transactions, as changes in unrestricted net assets. 
 
Advertising Costs - The Network expenses advertising costs the first time the advertising takes place.  The total 
amount charged to advertising expense was $1,738,571 and $1,528,431 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 
2010, respectively, and is recorded in supplies and other expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of 
operations and changes in net assets. 
 
Reclassification - Certain amounts in the 2010 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2011 
presentation.  These reclassifications had no material effect on the 2010 financial statements. 
 
Subsequent Events - Subsequent events have been evaluated through January 25, 2012, the date through which 
procedures were performed to prepare the consolidated financial statements for issuance.  Management believes 
that there are no subsequent events having a material impact on the financial statements. 
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Note 3 - Assets Whose Use is Limited and Investments 
 
Assets whose use is limited and investments as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, include the following: 
 

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Board designated and donor-restricted:

Money market funds 72,074$              72,074$              4,461,544$       4,461,544$       

Mutual funds:

Short-term bond fund 4,474,955           4,425,166           -                    -                    

Large value fund 5,493,506           4,616,340           -                    -                    

Moderate allocation funds 15,470,520         14,081,371         20,576,972       18,829,496       

Foreign growth fund 2,699,632           2,448,421           3,000,000         3,171,556         

Total 28,210,687$       25,643,372$       28,038,516$     26,462,596$     

Investments held in trust for estimated 

self-insurance liabilities:

Money market funds 415,571$            415,571$            627,736$          627,736$          

U.S. government securities 2,336,625           2,425,959           3,395,176         3,470,453         

Corporate bonds 1,773,604           1,847,092           2,180,696         2,299,140         

U.S. equities 525,222              607,838              601,552            691,841            

Mutual funds:

Bond fund 600,417              606,851              800,000            817,878            

Short-term government fund 255,932              255,932              449,322            449,726            

Emerging markets fund 138,872              138,872              170,000            188,770            

Midcap stock fund 103,789              111,434              130,000            145,421            

International stock fund 88,053                88,219                100,000            108,140            

Short-term bond fund 78,504                79,743                76,564              79,301              

Moderate allocation fund 1,831,333           1,943,493           1,802,641         1,944,713         

Other investments 364,734              370,166              354,159            370,658            

Total 8,512,656$         8,891,170$         10,687,846$     11,193,777$     

Investments held under bond indenture:

Money market funds 6,252,334$         6,252,334$         6,115,415$       6,115,415$       

U.S. government securities 1,155,151           1,153,465           -                    -                    

Total 7,407,485$         7,405,799$         6,115,415$       6,115,415$       

Beneficial interest in trust assets 7,519,514$         6,688,165$         5,664,832$       7,003,197$       

2011 2010
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Note 3 - Assets Whose Use is Limited and Investments (continued) 
 

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Investments:

Money market funds 377,287$            377,287$            1,303,139$       1,303,139$       

U.S. equities 112,549              105,379              117,659            112,969            

Corporate bonds -                      -                      10,000              10,230              

Certificates of deposit 115,000              114,909              90,000              90,853              

Mutual funds:

Short-term bond 1,670,136           1,668,152           622,479            647,005            

Large value fund 7,257,643           5,918,420           6,653,264         5,886,155         

Moderate allocation funds 1,718,163           1,698,002           1,676,104         1,672,410         

Foreign large fund 7,615,481           7,062,548           7,400,001         7,916,475         

Total 18,866,259$       16,944,697$       17,872,646$     17,639,236$     

Total assets whose use is limited

and investments 70,516,601$       65,573,203$       68,379,255$     68,414,221$     

2011 2010

 
 
Fair values and gross unrealized losses for all investment categories whose fair value is below its cost as of 
September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the length of time that the securities have been in an unrealized loss position as 
of September 30, 2011 and 2010, are as follows: 
 

2011

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Large value fund -$               -$            10,534,760$  (2,216,389)$  10,534,760$  (2,216,389)$  

Foreign growth fund 4,725,717      (390,690)     4,785,252      (413,454)       9,510,969      (804,144)       

Short-term bond fund 6,065,985      (52,106)       -                 -                6,065,985      (52,106)         

Common stock -                 -              105,379         (7,170)           105,379         (7,170)           

Certificates of deposit 114,938         (62)              -                 -                114,938         (62)                

U.S. government securities 556,607         (1,012)         -                 -                556,607         (1,012)           

Moderate allocation funds 4,453,928      (63,375)       10,933,391    (1,375,752)    15,387,319    (1,439,127)    

15,917,175$  (507,245)$   26,358,782$  (4,012,765)$  42,275,957$  (4,520,010)$  

2010

Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Equity mutual funds 2,347,545$    (52,457)$     21,830,628$  (3,021,184)$  24,178,173$  (3,073,641)$  

Less than 12 months Greater than 12 months Total

Less than 12 months Greater than 12 months Total
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Note 3 - Assets Whose Use is Limited and Investments (continued) 
 
The Network’s unrealized losses on its investments in mutual funds consist mostly of unrealized losses in the 
Vanguard Group and Dodge & Cox diversified equity mutual funds as of September 30, 2011 and 2010.  The 
Network has evaluated the near-term prospects of the investments in relation to the severity of the impairment (fair 
value is approximately 1% to 24% and 2% to 22% less than cost as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively) 
and recent market trends.  Based on that evaluation and the Network’s ability and intent to hold those investments 
for a reasonable period of time sufficient for a forecasted recovery of fair value, the Network does not consider 
those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired as of September 30, 2011 and 2010. 
 
Interest and dividend income, which is included in other operating revenue, on the assets whose use is limited and 
investments totaled $1,356,553 and $956,382 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  
There were no realized gains or losses for the years ended September 30, 2011 or 2010. 
 
Note 4 - Fair Value Measurements 
 
FASB ASC 820 provides a framework for measuring fair value.  That framework provides a fair value hierarchy 
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value.  The hierarchy gives the highest 
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and 
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). 
 
The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows: 
 

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities 
in active markets that the Network has the ability to access. 

 
Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology include: 

 
 Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; 
 Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets; 
 Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; 
 Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or 

other means. 
 
If the asset or liability has specified (contractual) terms, the Level 2 input must be observable for 
substantially the full term of the asset or liability. 
 
Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value 
measurement. 
 

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of 
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.   
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Note 4 - Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 
The following table presents the financial instruments carried at fair value as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, by 
the valuation hierarchy. 
 

2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:

Money market funds 7,117,266$    -$               -$               7,117,266$    

U.S. government agency securities 3,579,424      -     -     3,579,424 

Corporate bonds -                     1,847,092 -     1,847,092 

Certificates of deposit 114,909         -     -     114,909 

U.S. equities 713,217         -     -     713,217 

Mutual funds:

Bond fund 606,851         -     -     606,851 

Short-term bond 6,173,061      -     -     6,173,061 

Large value fund 10,534,760    -     -     10,534,760 

Moderate allocation fund 17,722,866    -     -     17,722,866 

Foreign growth fund 2,448,421      -     -     2,448,421 

Short-term government fund 255,932         -     -     255,932 

Emerging markets fund 138,872         -     -     138,872 

Midcap stock fund 111,434         -     -     111,434 

International stock fund 88,219           -     -     88,219 

Foreign large fund 7,062,548      -     -     7,062,548 

Other investments 370,166         -     -     370,166 

Beneficial interest in trusts -     -     6,688,165      6,688,165      

Total assets at fair value 57,037,946$  1,847,092$    6,688,165$    65,573,203$  

Liabilities:

Obligations under interest rate 

swap agreements -$               587,718$       -$               587,718$       

Total liabilities at fair value -$               587,718$       -$               587,718$       
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Note 4 - Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 

2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:

Money market funds 11,961,490$  -$               -$               11,961,490$  

Fixed income mutual funds 12,934,344    -     -     12,934,344    

Equity mutual funds 35,833,232    -     -     35,833,232    

U.S. equities 639,644         -     -     639,644         

Other investments 42,314           -     -     42,314           

Beneficial interest in trusts -     -     7,003,197 7,003,197      

Total assets at fair value 61,411,024$  -$               7,003,197$    68,414,221$  

Liabilities:

Obligations under interest rate 

swap agreements -$               3,381,315$    -$               3,381,315$    

Total liabilities at fair value -$               3,381,315$    -$               3,381,315$    

 
During the year ending September 30, 2011 and 2010, the value of the beneficial interest in trusts (decreased) 
increased for a change in market value of $(315,032) and $209,328, respectively. 
 
The Network’s valuation methodologies used to measure financial assets and liabilities at fair value are outlined 
below.  Where applicable, the Network uses quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities to 
determine fair value (Level 1 inputs).  This pricing methodology applies to money market funds, short-term bonds, 
fixed income and equity mutual funds. 
 
If quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities are not available, then quoted prices for similar 
assets and liabilities, quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in inactive markets or inputs other than quoted 
prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, will be used to determine fair value 
(Level 2 inputs).  The Level 2 classifications include the interest rate swap agreements.  The interest rate swap 
agreements are valued based on a determination of market expectations relating to the future cash flows associated 
with the swap contract using sophisticated modeling based on observable market-based inputs, such as interest rate 
curves.   
 
Assets and liabilities that are valued using significant unobservable inputs, such as extrapolated data, proprietary 
models, or indicative quotes that cannot be corroborated with market data are classified in Level 3 within the fair 
value hierarchy.  The Level 3 classification includes the Network’s beneficial interest in trusts.  The value of the 
Network’s assets is based on total fund values and the Network’s corresponding beneficiary percentage. 
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Note 4 - Fair Value Measurements (continued) 
 
The fair value of the Network’s Series A and C Bonds are based on current traded value.  The fair value of the 
Series A and C Bonds as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, is approximately $43,669,343 and $45,821,161, 
respectively.  The fair value of the Network’s remaining long-term debt approximates its carrying value. 
 
As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Network’s other financial instruments included accounts receivable, 
accounts payable and accrued expenses and estimated settlements due to and from third-party payers.  The carrying 
amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheets for these financial instruments approximate their fair value.   
 
The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable 
value or reflective of future fair values.  Furthermore, although the Network believes its valuation methods are 
appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to 
determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair value measurement at the 
reporting date. 
 
Note 5 - Other Assets 
 
Other assets as of September 30, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following: 
 

2011 2010

Pledges receivable 375,977$             518,037$             
Other receivables 1,493,578            718,818               
Notes receivable 236,955               253,007               
Unamortized bond issuance costs 2,733,617            2,634,649            
Losses recoverable 668,831               407,284               

Total 5,508,958$         4,531,795$          

 
As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, $431,031 and $518,622 of pledges receivables have been included within 
prepaid expenses and other current assets as management anticipates them to be collected within the next year.   
Pledges receivable are expected to be realized as follows: 
 

2011 2010

In one year or less 435,220$             525,729$             
Between one and five years 387,188               557,027               
Greater than five years 11,295                 -                       
Less: discount for present value (26,695)                (46,097)                

Pledges receivable - net 807,008$             1,036,659$          
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Note 5 - Other Assets (continued) 
 

Pledges receivable are reported at their net present value, discounted at rates from 1.15% to 4.90%.  There was no 
allowance for uncollectible amounts recorded as of September 30, 2011 and 2010. 
 
As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, unamortized bond issuance costs consist of the following: 
 

2011 2010

Deferred financing costs 4,007,394$      3,489,572$      
Less accumulated amortization (1,273,777)       (854,923)          

2,733,617$      2,634,649$      

 
Note 6 - Property, Plant and Equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, consist of the following: 
 

2011 2010

Land and land improvements 4,990,960$          4,981,110$          
Buildings and building improvements 153,080,146        152,050,532        
Fixed equipment 25,461,887          25,474,232          
Movable equipment 115,285,955        108,402,129        

298,818,948        290,908,003        
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (205,118,802)       (194,035,440)       

93,700,146          96,872,563          
Construction in progress 2,489,451            487,299               

96,189,597$        97,359,862$        

 
For the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Network capitalized interest related to construction financed 
with tax-exempt debt of $56,180 and $31,057, respectively.  
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Note 7 - Intangible Assets 
 
The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization, by class of intangible assets, as of September 30, 2011 
and 2010, consisted of the following: 
 

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
2011 Amount Amortization Amount

License enhancements 1,898,684$       (1,146,550)$     752,134$          
Goodwill 5,017,411       (526,403)        4,491,008         

6,916,095$       (1,672,953)$     5,243,142$       

Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
2010 Amount Amortization Amount

License enhancements 1,898,684$       (901,224)$        997,460$          
Goodwill 4,991,411       (458,123)        4,533,288         

6,890,095$       (1,359,347)$     5,530,748$       

 
Amortization expense related to intangible assets was $313,606 and $324,689 for the years ended September 30, 
2011 and 2010, respectively. 
 
The estimated amortization expense in each of the succeeding five fiscal years as of September 30, 2011 is as 
follows: 
 

2012 173,326$          
2013 29,326              
2014 29,326              
2015 29,326              
2016 29,326            
Thereafter 461,504          

752,134$          

 
Note 8 - Estimated Self-Insurance Liabilities  
 
The Network is self-insured for workers’ compensation insurance coverage.  The Network participates in Workers’ 
Compensation Trust, a revocable trust, for the purpose of setting aside assets based on actuarial funding 
recommendations. 
 
The Network has a $350,000 limit per occurrence for workers’ compensation claims.  The Network has employed 
independent actuaries to estimate the ultimate costs, if any, of workers’ compensation claims.  Accrued workers’ 
compensation reserves have been discounted at 5% as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, and in management’s 
opinion provide an adequate reserve for loss contingencies. 
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Note 8 - Estimated Self-Insurance Liabilities (continued) 
 
In fiscal year 2007, ECHN established a single-parent captive, CHIC, which covers all of its subsidiaries.  The 
captive provides malpractice and general insurance coverage for ECHN and its subsidiaries at $3,000,000 per 
occurrence and $9,000,000 in the aggregate for the years ending September 30, 2011 and 2010. 
 
Effective October 1, 2009, CHIC also provided an excess healthcare professional liability and umbrella liability 
insurance policy on a claims made basis covering healthcare professional liability, general care liability, automobile 
liability, employers liability, helipad liability and non-owned aircraft liability.  The limit provided is $30,000,000 
for each loss event and in the annual aggregate excess of the primary coverage layers described above. 
 
ECHN does not self-insure any malpractice risks other than exposures greater than its excess coverages, however, 
as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, ECHN has recorded a liability for estimated incurred but not reported claims, 
as it currently has a claims-made policy with CHIC. 
 
The activity in the reserve for outstanding losses and loss related expenses at ECHN for workers’ compensation and 
malpractice claims as of September 30, 2011 and 2010 is as follows: 
 

2011 2010

Balance at beginning of year 9,928,068$             10,124,991$       

Workers’ compensation:
  Losses incurred related to:
    Current year 760,598                  829,483              
    Prior year 519,971                  223,362              
           Total incurred 1,280,569               1,052,845           
  
  Paid losses related to:
    Current year (369,365)                (250,397)             
    Prior year (862,189)              (804,448)            
           Total paid (1,231,554)             (1,054,845)          

Professional and general:
  Losses incurred related to:
    Current year 1,217,479               1,594,411           
    Prior year 1,865,848               703,034              
           Total incurred 3,083,327               2,297,445           
  
  Paid losses related to:
    Current year (157)                       (69,699)               
    Prior year (4,043,915)           (2,422,669)         
           Total paid (4,044,072)             (2,492,368)          

Balance at end of year 9,016,338$             9,928,068$         
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Note 8 - Estimated Self-Insurance Liabilities (continued) 
 

Workers Compensation - The development on prior-year incurred losses increased by approximately $520,000 and 
$223,000 as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
 
Professional and General - The development on prior-year incurred losses increased by approximately $1,870,000 
and $703,000 as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
 
The reserve for losses, which was determined with the assistance of an actuarial consultant, included estimates of 
claims incurred but not reported.  Approximately, $2,705,000 and $2,882,000 of the reserve as of September 30, 
2011 and 2010, respectively, are included in other current liabilities with the balance of the reserve included in 
estimated self-insurance liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2011 and 
2010, respectively. 
 
Note 9 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits 
 
ECHN has a defined benefit pension plan covering substantially all of the employees of MMH and RGH.  The 
benefits are based upon years of service and compensation for the five highest years during the employee’s last 
10 years of service.  The hospitals make contributions in amounts sufficient to meet the minimum funding 
requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as well as such additional amounts as 
deemed appropriate. 
 
Effective December 31, 2008, ECHN implemented a soft freeze on the defined benefit pension plan.  All 
employees with age and service credits greater than 65 were given the option to stay in the defined benefit pension 
plan or freeze their defined benefits and enter into a defined contribution plan.  All other employees were required 
to enter into the defined contribution plan.  Under the defined contribution plan, ECHN contributes a match of 3% 
of employee salaries.  This match is non-guaranteed for all employees except certain union workers.  During fiscal 
year 2011 and 2010, the Network incurred expenses of $1,636,926 and $1,900,006, respectively, related to this 
plan. 
 
MMH and RGH also sponsor a postretirement benefit plan that provides health care benefits to full-time employees 
who retire on or after age 62 with at least five years of service who were hired prior to July 1, 1995, and employees 
who retired in September 1994 under the Voluntary Early Retirement Program.  Plan participants may choose 
individual or family coverage.  The postretirement health care plan is contributory.  MMH and RGH will contribute 
50% of the premium amount for individual coverage.  The retiree pays the difference between the actual premium 
and the amount MMH and RGH pays. 
 
Unrestricted net assets of the Network as of September 30, 2011, include unrecognized actuarial losses of 
$53,870,879 related to the defined-benefit pension plan and unrecognized actuarial gains of $702,834 related to the 
postretirement plan.  Of this amount, $2,636,799 is expected to be recognized in net periodic pension costs in 2012.  
Unrestricted net assets of the Network as of September 30, 2010, include unrecognized actuarial losses of 
$40,341,412 related to the defined-benefit pension plan and unrecognized actuarial gains of $787,821 related to the 
postretirement plan.  Of this amount, $1,082,844 was recognized in net periodic pension costs in 2011. 
 
The effects of Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement, and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Act) were reflected 
as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, assuming that ECHN will continue to provide a prescription drug benefit to 
retirees that is at least actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D and that ECHN will receive the federal subsidy.  
This reduced plan liabilities by approximately $1,100,000 and $1,200,000 as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.  Subsidies of $95,233 and $80,531 were received in the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively.  Future benefits of $420,466 are expected to be paid and future subsidies of $73,907 are expected to 
be received related to the year ended September 30, 2011. 
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Note 9 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued) 
 
The pension and postretirement plans’ change in benefit obligation and change in plan assets for the years ended 
September 30, 2011 and 2010, are as follows: 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010
Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation, beginning of year 173,024,122$    155,082,045$    4,502,342$        4,487,049$        
Service cost 1,694,601 1,596,249          62,573               79,344               
Interest cost 9,607,108 9,729,421          211,052             265,261             
Plan participants’ contributions -                    -                    676,830             691,688             
Receipt of Medicare Part D reimbursement -                    -                    95,233               80,531               
Actuarial loss (gain) 11,875,070 13,949,602        105,204             (114,006)            
Special termination benefits -                    54,784               -                     -                     
Benefits paid (7,485,957) (7,387,979)        (972,547)            (987,525)            

Benefit obligation, end of year 188,714,944$   173,024,122$    4,680,687$        4,502,342$        

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year 118,535,420$    109,372,074$    -$                   -$                   
Actual return on plan assets 7,674,517          13,654,635        -                     -                     
Employer contributions 6,570,000          2,896,690          200,484             215,306             
Plan participants’ contributions -                    -                    676,830             691,688             
Receipt of Medicare Part D reimbursement -                    -                    95,233               80,531               
Benefits paid (7,485,957)        (7,387,979)        (972,547)            (987,525)            

Fair value of plan assets, end of year 125,293,980$   118,535,420$    -$                   -$                   

Accrued pension and other postretirement
benefits (63,420,964)$   (54,488,702)$    (4,680,687)$      (4,502,342)$       

Accumulated benefit obligation (183,312,903)$ (170,445,603)$  -$                   -$                   

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

 
The amount recognized in the Network’s consolidated balance sheets as of September 30, 2011 and 2010 are as 
follows: 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010

Current liabilities 10,910,000$      6,570,000$        419,346$           430,050$         
Noncurrent liabilities 52,510,964        47,918,702        4,261,341          4,072,292        

Net amount recognized 63,420,964$      54,488,702$      4,680,687$        4,502,342$      

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
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Note 9 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued) 
 
The allocation of the accrued pension and postretirement benefits for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 
is as follows: 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010

MMH 48,712,087$          41,994,179$          3,336,703$            3,209,566$            
RGH 14,708,877            12,494,523            1,343,984              1,292,776              

63,420,964$          54,488,702$          4,680,687$            4,502,342$            

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

 
The plans’ components of net periodic benefit cost for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, are as follows 
(pension benefits information presented is for MMH and RGH combined): 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010

Service cost 1,694,601$      1,596,249$      62,573$           79,344$           
Interest cost 9,607,108        9,729,421        211,052           265,261           
Expected return on plan assets (10,398,180)     (10,238,115)     -                   -                   
Amortization of prior service 

(credits) costs (234,992)          (234,992)          77,724             77,724             
Special termination benefit recognized -                   54,784             -                   -                   
Recognized actuarial gain 1,304,258        -                    (57,507)            (34,441)            

Net periodic benefit cost 1,972,795$      907,347$         293,842$         387,888$         

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits

 
The allocation of the net periodic benefit cost for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, is as follows: 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010

MMH 1,340,948$      574,304$         209,470$         234,368$         
RGH 631,847           333,043           84,372             153,520           

1,972,795$      907,347$         293,842$         387,888$         

Pension Benefits Other Postretirement Benefits
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Note 9 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued) 
 
The assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost of the pension and postretirement plans for the years 
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, were as follows: 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010

Discount rate 5.47% 5.67% 5.03% 4.88%
Expected long-term rate of return 8.00% 8.00% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase 2.75% 2.75% N/A N/A
Initial medical trend rate N/A N/A 8.91% 9.00%
Ultimate medical trend rate N/A N/A 4.50% 5.00%
Number of years to ultimate medical trend rate N/A N/A 17 years 8 years

Pension Benefits
Other Postretirement 

Benefits

 
The assumptions used to determine pension and postretirement benefit obligations as of September 30, 2011 and 
2010, are as follows: 
 

2011 2010 2011 2010

Discount rate 5.67% 6.41% 4.88% 5.94%
Expected long-term rate of return 8.00% 8.00% N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase 2.75% 3.00% N/A N/A
Initial medical trend rate N/A N/A 9.00% 9.00%
Ultimate medical trend rate N/A N/A 5.00% 5.00%
Number of years to ultimate medical trend rate N/A N/A 17 years 8 years

                      

Pension Benefits
Other Postretirement 

Benefits

 
The medical trend rate has a significant effect on the amounts reported.  A one-percentage-point change in assumed 
health care cost trend rates would have the following effects: 
 

One 
Percentage 

Point Increase
One Percentage 
Point Decrease

Effect on year-end postretirement benefit obligation 382,273$        (348,083)$        

Effect on total of service and interest cost components 23,979$          (21,172)$          
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Note 9 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued) 
 
The pension plan’s weighted-average asset allocations as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, by asset category, are as 
follows: 
 

2011 2010

Asset category:

Equity securities 42% 63%

Debt securities 57% 34%

Cash and cash equivalents 1% 1%

Real estate 0% 2%

100% 100%

Pension Benefits

 
The pension plan’s investment policy includes the following asset allocation guidelines: 

 

Policy Target Range Policy Target Range

Asset category:

Equity securities 44% 34-54% 58% 41-75%

Debt securities 56% 51-61% 39% 24-49%

Cash and cash equivalents 0% 0-4% 2% 0-4%

Real estate 0% 0-2% 1% 0-2%

2011 2010

 
The asset allocation policy was developed in consideration of the following long-term investment objectives: 
maximizing portfolio returns with at least a return of 4%, net of all trading expenses and fees, above inflation, as 
measured by the Consumer Price Index, and achieving portfolio returns that exceed a composite index consisting of 
the S&P 500, the Russell 2000 Index, Ryan Labs GIC Index and the Barclays Capital Aggregate Bond Index in the 
same proportion as the fund’s average commitment to equity and fixed income, respectively, and to rank in the top 
quartile of a broad universe of corporate pension plans of similar size. 
 
The expected long-term rate-of-return-on-assets assumption was determined by evaluating portfolio returns based 
on capital market assumptions over a 20-year time horizon, which are reduced by expected transaction costs and 
expected investment management fees for passively invested assets (to the extent that such fees are expected to be 
paid out of plan assets rather than directly by the Network). 



Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 
 

31 

Note 9 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued) 
 
Fair value methodologies used to assign plan assets to levels in accordance with ASC 820 are consistent with the 
inputs described in Note 4.  The following table presents the investments of the defined benefit plan carried at fair 
value as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, by the valuation hierarchy. 
 

2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 588,004$         -$                -$                588,004$           

Fixed income mutual funds:

Long duration 56,839,238 -     -     56,839,238        

US Core Opportunistic 9,716,075 -     -     9,716,075          

US Passive 1,738,106 -     -     1,738,106          

Guaranteed investment contract 170,915 -     3,374,535       3,545,450          

Equities:

Small/mid cap 5,699,196        -     -     5,699,196          

Large cap 26,548,136      -     -     26,548,136        

International 20,619,775      -     -     20,619,775        

Total assets at fair value 121,919,445$  -$                3,374,535$     125,293,980$    

2010 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,009,311$      -$                -$                1,009,311$        

Fixed income mutual funds 40,711,867      -     -     40,711,867        

Equity mutual funds 15,531,470      -     -     15,531,470        

Guaranteed investment contract 193,405           -     3,571,198       3,764,603          

Real estate -     -     2,333,339       2,333,339          

Equities:

Small cap 7,334,538        -     -     7,334,538          

Mid cap 6,686,884        -     -     6,686,884          

Large cap 18,876,428      -     -     18,876,428        

International 22,286,980      -     -     22,286,980        

Total assets at fair value 112,630,883$  -$                5,904,537$     118,535,420$    
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Note 9 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued) 
 
The changes within the level 3 investments as of September 30, 2011 and 2010 are as follows: 
 

2011
Real Estate 
Securities

Guaranteed 
Investment 
Contract Total

Balance as of October 1, 2010 2,333,339$           3,571,198$           5,904,537$           

Investment return:

Investment income -                        237,985                237,985                

Net change in market value 498,504                -                        498,504                

Proceeds from sale of investment (2,831,843)            -                        (2,831,843)            

Expenditures -                        (434,648)               (434,648)               

Balance as of September 30, 2011 -$                      3,374,535$           3,374,535$           

2010
Real Estate 
Securities

Guaranteed 
Investment 
Contract Total

Balance as of October 1, 2009 1,674,128$           3,818,949$           5,493,077$           

Investment return:

Investment income -                        230,563                230,563                

Net change in market value 659,211                -                        659,211                

Expenditures -                        (478,314)               (478,314)               

Balance as of September 30, 2010 2,333,339$           3,571,198$           5,904,537$           

 
During fiscal year 2012, ECHN anticipates contributing $10,910,000 to the defined benefit pension plan. 
 
The benefit payments, which reflect estimated future service, expected to be paid from the plans for the year ended 
September 30, 2011, are as follows: 
 

Pension Benefits
Other Postretirement 

Benefits

2012 7,598,773$                      420,446$                         

2013 8,023,564$                      428,474$                         

2014 8,392,873$                      435,840$                         

2015 8,876,428$                      438,113$                         

2016 9,402,030$                      433,606$                         

2017-2020 56,851,565$                    2,250,307$                      
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Note 9 - Pension and Other Postretirement Benefits (continued) 
 
The Network also has a defined contribution employee savings plan covering substantially all employees.  Eligible 
employees who contribute to the plan will have 20% - 50%, depending upon years of service, of contributions 
matched by the Hospital, up to a maximum of 6% of annual compensation.  Contributions to the plan were 
suspended for non-union employees from April 2009 to April 2010.  The Network incurred expenses related to the 
employee savings plan amounting to $1,729,474 and $1,788,564 for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, 
respectively. 
 
Note 10 - Long-term Debt and Lines of Credit 
 
Long-term debt and capital lease obligations as of September 30, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following: 
 

2011 2010

Connecticut Health and Educational Facilities Authority (CHEFA) Hospital
Revenue Bonds, ECHN Series A Bonds, bearing interest at rates ranging from
5.625% to 6.375% - net of unamortized original issue discount of $60,953 and
$68,177 for 2011 and 2010, respectively. 10,639,047$         11,351,823$         

CHEFA Hospital Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, ECHN Series B Bonds,
bearing interest at a variable rate, adjusted weekly. -                    17,215,000           

CHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds, ECHN Series C Bonds, bearing interest ranging
from 3.25% to 5.125% - net of unamortized original issue premium of $392,250
and $412,894 for 2011 and 2010, respectively. 35,272,250           36,012,895           

CHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds, ECHN Series D Bonds bearing interest at a
variable rate, adjusted weekly. 14,619,999           14,897,999           

CHEFA Hospital Demand Revenue Bonds, ECHN Series E Bonds, bearing
interest at a variable rate, adjusted weekly. 19,625,000           -                    

Loan due to Chase Equipment Leasing Inc., face amount of $4,922,567 due and
payable in monthly principal and interest installments maturing on July 13, 2011,
bearing interest at 4.14%. -                    892,577                

Promissory note payable to the Siemens Medical Solutions USA, face amount of
$1,609,306 due and payable in monthly principal and interest installments
maturing from April 30, 2011 to August 31, 2012, bearing interest at rates ranging
from 5.8% to 6%. 165,166                419,866                

Loan due to Chase Equipment Leasing Inc., face amount of $4,000,000 due and
payable in monthly principal and interest installments maturing on March 20,
2013, and bearing interest at 3.24%. 1,268,650             2,080,847             
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Note 10 - Long-term Debt and Lines of Credit (continued) 
 

2011 2010

Promissory note payable to NewAlliance Bank due and payable in monthly
principal and interest installments, maturing on June 1, 2012, bearing interest at a
variable rate. 22,286                  55,165                  

Promissory note payable to Rockville Bank due and payable in monthly principal
and interest installments maturing on July 1, 2025, bearing interest at 5.87%.

884,113                926,921                

Mortgage payable to Rockville Bank - $176,000 for 20 years, bearing interest at
6.6% for the first five years, adjustable thereafter, every five years. 152,796                158,391                

Mortgage payable to Rockville Bank - $236,800 for 15 years, bearing interest at
6.5% for the first five years, adjustable thereafter every five years.

189,275                201,094                

Capital lease obligations (see Note 12) 9,449,030           2,610,022            

           Total long-term debt and capital lease obligations 92,287,612           86,822,600           

Less: current maturities (5,652,447)           (5,089,518)           

Total long-term debt and capital lease obligations - net of current portion 86,635,165$         81,733,082$         

 
Lines of credit as of September 30, 2011 and 2010 consist of the following: 
 

2011 2010

Revolving line of credit with Rockville Bank, bearing interest at a variable rate. 1,772,642$          1,905,000$          

Revolving line of credit with TD Bank in 2011 and Sovereign Bank in 2010,
bearing interest at a variable rate. 6,500,000             5,000,000             

8,272,642$           6,905,000$           

 
In February 2000, MMH, RGH, and EES (collectively, the Series A Obligated Group) entered into an agreement 
and open-ended mortgage with Connecticut Health and Educational Facilities Authority (CHEFA) in connection 
with the issuance of CHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds, Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Issue Series 2000A 
(the Series A Bonds).  A portion of the proceeds from the Series 2000A Bonds, net of the original issue discount 
and amounts used to establish required reserve accounts, was placed in an irrevocable trust from which the 
remaining debt service payments for defeased CHEFA bonds will be paid.  The remainder was used to finance 
additions and renovations for various facilities.  The Series A Obligated Group has been legally released from any 
future debt service on the defeased bonds.  The Series A Bonds are due on various due dates through July 1, 2030. 
 
In July 2004, MMH, RGH, EES, and ECHF (collectively, the Series B Obligated Group) entered into an agreement 
and open-ended mortgage with CHEFA in connection with the issuance of CHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds, 
Eastern Connecticut Health Network Issue, Series B (the Series B Bonds).  A portion of the proceeds from the 
Series B Bonds, net of the original issue discount and amounts used to establish required reserve accounts, was 
used to finance additions, renovations, and purchases of equipment for RGH and MMH. 
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Note 10 - Long-term Debt and Lines of Credit (continued) 
 
The additions and renovations financed by the Series B Bonds consist of improvements and expansion of the 
emergency department at RGH; the purchase, renovation, and equipping of the Dialysis Center at RGH; 
construction of the heliport at RGH, improvements to the Gastrointestinal and Rehabilitation Departments at RGH, 
and capital equipment purchases for MMH and RGH. 
 
The Series B bonds were refinanced as part of the issuance of Series E bonds as described below. 
 
On October 1, 2005, MMH, RGH, EES, and ECHF (collectively, the Series C Obligated Group) entered into an 
agreement and open-ended mortgage with CHEFA to borrow $37,065,000 in connection with the issuance of 
CHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds, Eastern Connecticut Health Network Issue, Series C (the Series C Bonds).  The 
proceeds from the Series C Bonds, net of the original issue premium and amounts used to establish required reserve 
accounts, were placed in an irrevocable trust to advance refund and defease a portion of the Series 2000A Bonds.  
MMH, RGH, and EES have been legally released from any future debt service on the portion of defeased 
Series 2000A Bonds.  The Series C Bonds are due on various due dates through July 1, 2034, bearing interest at 
rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.125%. 
 
In May 2009, MMH, RGH, EES, and ECHF (collectively, the Series D Obligated Group) entered into an agreement 
and open-ended mortgage with CHEFA in connection with the issuance of CHEFA Hospital Revenue Bonds, 
Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Issue Series D (the Series D Bonds).  A portion of the proceeds from the 
Series D Bonds, net of amounts used to establish required reserve accounts, were used to finance renovations at 
MMH, an expansion at EES, and other campus improvements.  The Series D Bonds are due on various due dates 
through May 14, 2039. 
 
In December 2010, MMH, RGH, EES, and ECHF (collectively, the Series E Obligated Group) entered into an 
agreement and open-ended mortgage with CHEFA in connection with the issuance of CHEFA Hospital Revenue 
Bonds, Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Issue Series E (the Series E Bonds).  The proceeds from the Series E 
Bonds, net of amounts used to establish required reserve accounts, were used to redeem the Series B Bonds and 
fund interest rate swap agreement termination payments relating to the Series B Bonds.  The Series E Bonds are 
due on various due dates through July 1, 2034. 
 
Under the terms of the Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D, and Series E Bonds, the Series A Obligated Group, 
Series B Obligated Group, Series C Obligated Group, Series D Obligated Group, and Series E Obligated Group (the 
Obligated Groups) are required to maintain certain deposits with a trustee.  Such deposits are included in assets 
whose use is limited.  The indenture also places limits on the incurrence of additional borrowings and dispositions 
of property and requires that the Obligated Groups satisfy certain measures of financial performance as long as the 
notes are outstanding. 
 
The Obligated Groups are required to comply with certain financial covenants (as defined in the trust agreements), 
including a debt service coverage ratio, day’s cash on hand requirement, and minimum cash to debt ratio.  As of 
September 30, 2011 and 2010, the Obligated Groups were in compliance with the financial covenants of the debt 
agreements, however, ECHN had to receive a waiver from TD Bank, N.A. (under a letter of credit agreement 
for Series D and E bonds) for transfers to affiliated organizations outside the Obligated Group in excess of $4.0 
million for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010. 
 
Under the terms of the CHEFA agreements, each member of the Obligated Groups is jointly and severally liable for 
the full and prompt payment of the amounts owed by the Obligated Groups.  Total debt of the Obligated Groups 
was $80,156,296 and $79,477,717 as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  The debt is also secured by 
the gross receipts of the Obligated Groups.   
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Note 10 - Long-term Debt and Lines of Credit (continued) 
 
The loans due to Chase Equipment Leasing, Inc. are collateralized by the related equipment, accessories, 
attachments, software, and other property relating thereto.  
 
The Hospital is party to various capital leases, which are described in Note 12. 
 
The annual maturities of the long-term debt and capital lease obligations in each of the succeeding five years and 
thereafter as of September 30, 2011 are as follows: 
 

2012 5,652,447$          
2013 5,177,711            
2014 4,490,212            
2015 4,296,080            
2016 3,834,389            
Thereafter 68,505,476          

91,956,315          
Plus - premium 331,297               

92,287,612$        

 
On July 30, 2007, ECHN entered into a $5,000,000 unsecured line of credit agreement with Sovereign Bank.  
ECHN has the option of choosing as the interest rate either London InterBank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 3%, or 
the prime rate plus 1.75%; however, advances will not bear interest below the floor rate of 4%.  During 2010, the 
agreement was extended and expired on October 28, 2010, at which time the line of credit was not renewed.  On 
November 11, 2010, ECHN entered into a $6,500,000 unsecured line of credit with TD Bank, N.A., to replace the 
line of credit agreement with Sovereign Bank.  This line of credit carries an interest rate of LIBOR plus 2.25% and 
expires one year after issuance date.  Subsequent to year end, ECHN renewed this line of credit.  As of September 
30, 2011 and 2010, MMH had $6,500,000 and $5,000,000 outstanding.   
 
On October 28, 2009, ECHN entered into a $2,000,000 unsecured line of credit agreement with Rockville Bank.  
The line of credit bears a variable interest rate equal to the prime rate plus .5%.  As of September 30, 2011 and 
2010, ECHN had $1,772,642 and $1,905,000, respectively, outstanding on the line. 
 
Note 11 - Derivatives 
 
The Network uses derivative instruments, specifically interest rate swap agreements, to manage its exposure to 
changes in the interest rate on its CHEFA bonds.  The use of derivative instruments exposes the Network to 
additional risks related to the derivative instrument, including market risk, credit risk and termination risk as 
described below, and the Network has defined risk management practices to mitigate these risks, as appropriate.  
 
Market risk represents the potential adverse effect on the fair value and cash flow of a derivative instrument due to 
changes in interest rates or rate spreads.  Market risk is managed through ongoing monitoring of interest rate 
exposure based on set parameters regarding the type and degree of market risk that the Network will accept.  Credit 
risk is the risk that the counterparty on a derivative instrument may be unable to perform its obligation during the 
term of the contract.  When the fair value of a derivative contract is positive, the counterparty owes the Network, 
which creates credit risk. 
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Note 11 - Derivatives (continued) 
 
Credit risk is managed by setting stringent requirements for qualified counterparties at the date of execution of a 
derivative transaction and requiring counterparties to post collateral in the event of a credit rating downgrade or if 
the fair value of the derivative contract exceeds a negotiated threshold.   
 
Termination risk represents the risk that the Network may be required to make a significant payment to the 
counterparty, if the derivative contract is terminated early.  Termination risk is assessed at onset by performing a 
statistical analysis of the potential for a significant termination payment under various scenarios designed to 
encompass expected interest rate changes over the life of the proposed contract.  The test measures the ability to 
make a termination payment without a significant impairment to the Network’s ability to meet its debt or liquidity 
covenants.   
 
In November 2004, ECHN entered into an interest rate swap agreement to manage the interest cost and risk 
associated with $9,750,000 of its variable rate Series B Bonds.  Under the terms of this agreement, ECHN pays a 
fixed rate of 3.825%.  Changes in the fair value of this swap are recorded in the consolidated statements of 
operations and changes in net assets.  The Network’s portion of the swap agreement in force related to this strategy 
as of September 30, 2010, and the liability and interest expense recognized by the Network was as follows: 
 

2010

Notional amount of contract 8,607,500$          
Fair value of swap contract recognized in

accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,020,740$          
Net interest expense recognized in

non-operating losses 295,740$             

 
In connection with the redemption of Series B Bonds and the issuance of Series E Bonds, the swap was terminated 
and paid off in February 2011.  Total cash paid was $711,352 and a gain of $309,388 was recognized in non-
operating losses in the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended September 30, 2011. 
 
In December 2005, ECHN entered into a second interest rate swap agreement to manage the interest cost and risk 
associated with $9,750,000 of its variable rate Series B Bonds.  Under the terms of this agreement, ECHN pays a 
fixed rate of 3.708%.  The swap is accounted for as a cash flow hedge in accordance with ASC 815, “Accounting 
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”.  This accounting treatment requires the effective portion of the 
gain or loss on a derivative instrument designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedging instrument to be reported 
as a component of other changes in unrestricted net assets and to be reclassified into operations in the same period 
or periods during which the hedged forecasted transaction affects earnings.   
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Note 11 - Derivatives (continued) 
 
The remaining gain or loss on the derivative instrument, if any, is recognized currently in non-operating losses.  
The Network’s portion of swap agreement in force related to this strategy as of September 20, 2010, is presented as 
follows: 
 

2010

Notional amount of contract 8,607,500$          
Fair value of swap contract recognized in 

accounts payable and accrued expenses 1,677,331$          
Unrealized loss recognized as a reduction of 

unrestricted net assets (609,000)$            

 
In connection with the redemption of Series B Bonds and the issuance of Series E Bonds, the swap was terminated 
and paid off in May 2011.  Total cash paid was $822,875 and a loss of $822,875 was recognized in non-operating 
losses in the statements of operations and changes in net assets for the year ended September 30, 2011. 
 
In May 2009, ECHN entered into an interest rate swap agreement to manage the interest cost and risk associated 
with $15,250,000 of its variable rate Series D Bonds.  Under the terms of this agreement, ECHN pays a fixed rate 
of 3.89%.   
 
Changes in the fair value of this swap are recorded in the consolidated statements of operations and changes in net 
assets.  The Network’s portion of the swap agreement in force related to this strategy as of September 30, 2011 and 
2010, and the liability and interest expense recognized by the Network are as follows: 
 

2011 2010

Notional amount of contract 14,622,000$        14,898,000$        
Fair value of swap contract recognized in 

accounts payable and accrued expenses 588,000$             683,244$             
Net interest (income) expense recognized in 

non-operating losses (95,000)$              465,440$             

 
The counterparty to the above swap transactions is a major financial institution that meets ECHN’s criteria for 
financial stability and creditworthiness. 
 
Note 12 - Lease Commitments 
 
ECHN leases equipment under capital lease agreements which begin to expire in 2015.  The interest rates range 
from 4% to 7%.  The net carrying value of equipment under the capital lease was $8,905,687 and $1,133,436 as of 
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.  ECHN leases various office space and certain equipment under 
operating leases that expire in various years through fiscal year 2024.  Certain leases may be renewed at the end of 
their term. 
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Note 12 - Lease Commitments (continued) 
 
Future minimum payments under capital leases and non-cancelable operating leases as of September 30, 2011, 
consisted of the following: 
 

Capital Leases
Operating 

Leases

2012 2,562,945$       3,241,852$       
2013 2,573,681         2,724,644         
2014 2,135,909 2,669,929         
2015 1,766,824 2,539,447         
2016 1,192,431 2,047,817         
Thereafter -     4,880,995         

10,231,790       18,104,684$     

Less: interest on capital lease 782,760            

Principal amount of capital lease 9,449,030$       

 
Rent expense under operating and month-to-month leases was $5,865,625 and $5,221,471 for the years ended 
September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
 
Note 13 - Concentrations of Credit Risk 
 
ECHN grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are insured under third-party payer agreements.  
The mix in patient accounts receivable as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, before allowances for doubtful 
accounts, consists of the following: 
 

2011 2010

Self-pay 21 % 20 %
Medicare 31                   30                    
Managed care 24                   21                    
Commercial insurance 5                     7                      
Medicaid 14                   18                    
Other 5                     4                      

100 %                100 %                 
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Note 14 - Net Patient Service Revenues 
 
Net patient service revenues for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, consists of the following: 
 

2011 2010

Patient service revenues:
  Inpatient services 228,912,612$      243,586,483$      
  Outpatient services 409,922,763        391,192,386        

Gross patient service revenues 638,835,375        634,778,869        
Deductions - allowances (377,486,499)       (371,960,978)       

Net patient service revenues 261,348,876$     262,817,891$      

 
Note 15 - Community Benefit 
 
ECHN’s mission is to improve the health of the people and the communities ECHN serves. 
 
ECHN provides quality health care to all, regardless of their ability to pay.  Charity care is provided to those 
who are eligible based on ECHN’s policy.  ECHN also incurs unpaid costs for government programs because 
reimbursement is not sufficient to cover costs associated with Medicare and Medicaid patients.  In addition to 
the charity care responsibilities, ECHN provides numerous other community benefits.  These community 
benefits include medical education and research, community health education, screenings, support groups, 
counseling services, and in-kind support.  To address the need for health care providers, a number of programs 
are offered for young people who may be interested in a career in health care.   
 
ECHN utilizes guidelines developed by various organizations to quantify community benefit activities.  ECHN 
defines community benefit activities as those that improve access to care, as well as the health of the broader 
community.  In addition to charity care and the unpaid costs of government sponsored health care (Medicare 
and/or Medicaid shortfalls), community benefit activities will normally fall into one of the following 
categories: nonbilled community health services / community health improvement services, health professions 
education, subsidized health services, research, financial and in-kind contributions, community building 
activities, and community benefit operations.   
 
For the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, MMH and RGH granted total charity care of $5,660,092 and 
$3,008,857 respectively.  Such amounts are determined based on charges foregone. 
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Note 16 - Functional Expenses 
 
ECHN provides general health care services to residents within its geographical location.  For the years ended 
September 30, 2011 and 2010, expenses relating to providing these services are as follows: 
 

2011 2010

Health care services 224,862,546$      215,013,928$      
Fund raising 360,468               448,272               
General and administrative 55,724,494          58,644,212          

280,947,508$      274,106,412$      

 
Note 17 - Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets 
 
The temporarily restricted net assets available as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, are available for the following 
purposes: 
 

2011 2010

Departmental and endowment purposes 1,676,961$          2,232,708$          
Capital campaign and pledges 573,002               3,178,680            

2,249,963$          5,411,388$          

 
As of September 30, 2011 and 2010, permanently restricted net assets consist of the following: 
 

2011 2010

Beneficial interest in trust assets 6,688,165$          7,003,197$          
Endowments restricted for:

Other departmental purposes 3,929,053            3,929,053            
Charity care 320,817               320,817               
Special needs 151,579               151,579               

Cancer research 6,124                   6,124                   

11,095,738$        11,410,770$        
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Note 17 - Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets (continued) 
 
The composition of the Network’s endowment by net asset class as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, was as 
follows: 
 

2011 Unrestricted
Temporarily 

Restricted
Permanently 

Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds -$               1,677,008$    4,407,574$    6,084,582$    

Board-designated endowment funds 19,558,790    -                 -                 19,558,790    

Net assets, September 30, 2011 19,558,790$  1,677,008$    4,407,574$    25,643,372$  

2010 Unrestricted
Temporarily 

Restricted
Permanently 

Restricted Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds -$               4,578,454$    4,407,574$    8,986,028$    

Board-designated endowment funds 17,476,568    -                 -                 17,476,568    

Net assets, September 30, 2010 17,476,568$  4,578,454$    4,407,574$    26,462,596$  

 
The Network’s endowments consist of multiple funds established for a variety of purposes.  The endowments 
include both donor-restricted endowment funds, funds designated by the Board of Directors to function as 
endowments and assets held in trust by others.  As required by GAAP, endowments, including funds designated by 
the Board of Directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of 
donor restrictions.   
 
The Network has interpreted the relevant laws as requiring the preservation of the fair value of the original gift as 
of the gift date of the donor-restricted endowment funds absent explicit donor stipulations to the contrary.  The 
remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted net assets 
is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the 
Network.  
 
The Network considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-
restricted endowment funds: (1) the duration and preservation of the fund; (2) the purposes of the Network and the 
donor-restricted endowment fund; (3) general economic conditions; (4) the possible effect of inflation and 
deflation; (5) the expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments; (6) other resources of the 
Network; and (7) the investment policies of the Network. 
 
The Network has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to provide a 
reasonably stable and predictable stream of earnings to support the operations of the endowments and to preserve 
and enhance over time the real value of the endowment assets.  Under this policy, as approved by the Board of 
Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce a real return, net of inflation 
and investment and management costs, over the long-term.  Actual returns in any given year may vary from this 
amount. 
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Note 17 - Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets (continued) 
 
The Investment Committee of the Board is responsible for defining and reviewing the investment policy to 
determine an appropriate long-term asset allocation policy.  The asset allocation policy reflects the objective with 
allocations structured for capital growth and inflation protection over the long-term.   
 
To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Network relies on a total return strategy in which investment 
returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield (interest and 
dividends).  The Network targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater emphasis on equity based 
investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints. 
 
The Network has not appropriated funds for expenditure from its endowment funds for the years ending September 
30, 2011 and 2010.   
 
Changes in endowment net assets for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010 were as follows: 
 

2011 Unrestricted
Temporarily 

Restricted
Permanently 

Restricted Total

Net assets, October 1, 2010 17,476,568$  4,578,454$    4,407,574$    26,462,596$  

Interest income and dividends 562,989         34,183           -                 597,172         

Unrealized (depreciation)

appreciation on investments (1,079,410)     88,014           -                 (991,396)        

Appropriations for expenditure 2,598,643      (2,598,643)     -                 -                 

Distributions -                 (425,000)        -                 (425,000)        

Net assets, September 30, 2011 19,558,790$  1,677,008$    4,407,574$    25,643,372$  

2010 Unrestricted
Temporarily 

Restricted
Permanently 

Restricted Total

Net assets, October 1, 2009 12,595,828$  4,872,134$    4,398,105$    21,866,067$  

Interest income and dividends 335,016         42,255           -                 377,271         

Unrealized appreciation on investments 697,496         513,350         -                 1,210,846      

Appropriations for expenditure 849,285         (849,285)        -                 -                 

Transfer to (from) endowment 2,998,943      -                 945                2,999,888      

Contributions -                 -                 8,524             8,524             

Net assets, September 30, 2010 17,476,568$  4,578,454$    4,407,574$    26,462,596$  

 
From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor restricted endowment funds may fall 
below the level that the donor or relevant law requires the Network to retain as a fund of perpetual duration.  In 
accordance with GAAP, deficiencies of this nature are reported in unrestricted net assets.  As of September 30, 
2011 and 2010, there were no funds that were below the level required by donor or law. 
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Note 18 - Commitments and Contingencies 
 
The Network is involved in various legal actions arising from its activities.  Although the ultimate outcome is not 
determinable at this time, management, after taking into consideration the advice of legal counsel, believes that the 
resolution of these pending matters will not have a material adverse effect, individually or in the aggregate, on the 
consolidated balance sheets or on the related consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets, or 
consolidated cash flows of the Network. 
 
The Network and the Network’s defined benefit pension plans invest in various investment securities.  Investment 
securities are exposed to various risks such as interest rate, market and credit risks.  Due to the level of risk 
associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of 
investment securities will occur in the near term. 
 
Corporate Guaranty - In 2007, the Network was established as a guarantor of Sports Medicine Partners, 
Orthopedics & Rehabilitation Therapy, P.C. (Sports), a Friendly PC, allowing Sports to borrow $800,000 from 
North Fork Equipment Leasing for equipment and improvements to the space at Evergreen Walk.  Under the terms 
of the corporate guaranty, which is for 60 months and will expire in June 2012, the Network is responsible for 
payment of any and all debts owed by Sports to North Fork Equipment Leasing.  There was no collateral pledged as 
part of the corporate guaranty and $121,921 and $278,210 of the original $800,000 loan from North Fork 
Equipment Leasing was outstanding as of September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively. 
 
Note 19 - Statutory Capital and Surplus 
 
CHIC was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on September 15, 2006 and was granted an Unrestricted Class “B” 
insurance license under the Insurance Law of the Cayman Islands with effect from September 26, 2006.  CHIC is 
regulated by the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority (CIMA) and related relations, and is obligated to comply with 
CIMA regulations regarding minimum levels of solvency and liquidity.   
 
Statutory capital and surplus as of September 30, 2011 was $3,510,183, with a minimum amount required to be 
maintained by CHIC of $120,000.  ECHN reports all of CHIC’s investments as investments held in trust for 
estimated self-insurance liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
 
CHIC’s Board of Directors has recommended that equity of $973,000 be retained to pay claims in the event of 
adverse development.  Distribution of dividends is subject to approval by the Board of Directors.  No dividends 
were declared or paid during the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010. 
 
 



Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
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See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 
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Subtotal

The ECHN Series C, Eastern

The Rockville ECHN Subtotal Community Series D, ECHN ECHN ECHN Connecticut Connecticut

Manchester General ElderCare Series A Healthcare and Series  Health Enterprises, Wellness  Health Healthcare

Memorial Hospital, Services, Obligated Foundation, E Obligated Services, Inc. and Services, Network, Insurance

Hospital Inc. Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Subsidiaries Inc. Inc. Company Eliminations Total

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 10,880,739$          4,739,454$         894,458$            -$                        16,514,651$         1,510,689$          -$                   18,025,340$              360,213$          628,407$                  -$                292,976$            1,684,244$        -$                    20,991,180$         

Current portion of assets whose use is limited 803,195                 501,284              200,509              -                          1,504,988             -                      -                     1,504,988                 -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      1,504,988             

Accounts receivable - net 24,700,330            10,246,785         2,234,552           -                          37,181,667           -                      -                     37,181,667                2,302,311         -                            -                  122,030              37,420              -                      39,643,428           

Inventory 2,591,838              1,576,966           59,764                -                          4,228,568             -                      -                     4,228,568                 -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      4,228,568             

Due from affiliated entities 419,887                 2,196,771           298,927 (2,464,200)              451,385                18,169                -                     469,554                    2,711,714         -                            -                  1,425,642           -                    (4,606,910)           -                        

Current portion of estimated settlements

        due from third-party payers 432,832                 -                     -                      -                          432,832                -                      -                     432,832                    -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      432,832                

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,380,570              270,651              9,594                  -                          1,660,815             456,278              -                     2,117,093                 855,501            3,531                        -                  1,354,342           15,462              -                      4,345,929             

Total current assets 41,209,391            19,531,911         3,697,804           (2,464,200)              61,974,906           1,985,136           -                     63,960,042                6,229,739         631,938                    -                  3,194,990           1,737,126          (4,606,910)           71,146,925           

Assets whose use is limited - net of current portion:

Donor restricted investments 1,677,029              2,018,549           -                      -                          3,695,578             2,389,004           -                     6,084,582                 -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      6,084,582             

Board designated investments 6,346,662              7,095,031           -                      -                          13,441,693           6,117,097           -                     19,558,790                -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      19,558,790           

Investments held in trust for estimated

       self-insurance liabilities 2,438,807              -                     -                      -                          2,438,807             -                      -                     2,438,807                 -                   -                            -                  -                      6,452,363          -                      8,891,170             

Beneficial interest in trust assets 4,800,923              1,887,242           -                      -                          6,688,165             -                      -                     6,688,165                 -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      6,688,165             

Investments held under bond indentures 3,259,163              1,890,523           751,125              -                          5,900,811             -                      -                     5,900,811                 -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      5,900,811             

Total assets whose use is limited 18,522,584            12,891,345         751,125              -                          32,165,054           8,506,101           -                     40,671,155                -                   -                            -                  -                      6,452,363          -                      47,123,518           

Interest in net assets of ECHN CHF, Inc. 3,872,533              2,629,614           170,548              -                          6,672,695             -                      (6,672,695)          -                            -                   -                            -                  2,348,934           -                    (2,348,934)           -                        

Investments 7,217,602              7,740,794           1,759,038           -                          16,717,434           227,263 -                     16,944,697                -                   -                            -                  3,245,067           -                    (3,245,067)           16,944,697           

Investments in joint ventures 3,719,835              2,858,713           -                      -                          6,578,548             -                      -                     6,578,548                 -                   1,433,293                 -                  8,957,727           -                    -                      16,969,568           

Property, plant and equipment - net 52,084,498            31,151,854         8,429,985           -                          91,666,337           -                      -                     91,666,337                2,727,773         1,403,523                 -                  391,964              -                    -                      96,189,597           

Other assets:

Estimated settlements due from third-party

payers - net of current portion 1,306,869              1,856,415           -                      -                          3,163,284             -                      -                     3,163,284                 -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      3,163,284             

Due from affiliated entities - 

net of current portion 17,047,090            2,793,961           -                      -                          19,841,051           -                      -                     19,841,051                -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    (19,841,051)         -                        

Goodwill and intangible assets - net 72,000                   72,000                608,134 -                          752,134                -                      -                     752,134                    81,997 -                            -                  4,409,011           -                    -                      5,243,142             

Other - net 2,982,086              866,926              378,196 -                          4,227,208             375,977              -                     4,603,185                 15,000 -                            -                  221,955              668,818             -                      5,508,958             

Total other assets 21,408,045            5,589,302           986,330              -                          27,983,677           375,977              -                     28,359,654                96,997              -                            -                  4,630,966           668,818             (19,841,051)         13,915,384           

Total assets 148,034,488$        82,393,533$       15,794,830$        (2,464,200)$            243,758,651$        11,094,477$        (6,672,695)$        248,180,433$            9,054,509$       3,468,754$                -$                22,769,648$        8,858,307$        (30,041,962)$       262,289,689$        
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The ECHN Subtotal Eastern

The Rockville ECHN Subtotal Community Series C, ECHN ECHN Connecticut Connecticut

Manchester General ElderCare Series A Healthcare Series D, Health ECHN Wellness Health Healthcare

Memorial Hospital, Services, Obligated Foundation, and Series E Services, Enterprises, Inc. Services, Network, Insurance

Hospital Inc. Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Eliminations Obligated Groups Inc. and Subsidiaries Inc. Inc. Company Eliminations Total

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Lines of credit 6,500,000$            -$                   -$                    -$                        6,500,000$           -$                    -$                   6,500,000$                -$                 -$                          -$                1,772,642$          -$                  -$                    8,272,642$           

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 15,698,845            4,898,568           846,533              -                          21,443,946           33,500                -                     21,477,446                1,273,629         35,765                      -                  743,228              88,077              -                      23,618,145           

Current portion of long-term debt 3,467,143              1,247,313           495,689              -                          5,210,145             -                      -                     5,210,145                 -                   17,623                      -                  424,679              -                    -                      5,652,447             

Due to affiliates 2,283,655              2,717,350           182,566 (2,464,200)              2,719,371             250,212              -                     2,969,583                 7,808,571         2,849,130                 -                  13,522,154          -                    (27,149,438)         -                        

Current portion of estimated settlements

due to third-party payers 1,420,022              684,512              -                      -                          2,104,534             -                      -                     2,104,534                 -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      2,104,534             

Current portion of accrued pension

and other postretirement benefits 8,678,593              2,650,753           -                      -                          11,329,346           -                      -                     11,329,346                -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      11,329,346           

Other current liabilities 2,557,626              1,240,661           229,657              -                          4,027,944             -                      -                     4,027,944                 -                   -                            -                  -                      1,672,727          -                      5,700,671             

Total current liabilities 40,605,884            13,439,157         1,754,445           (2,464,200)              53,335,286           283,712              -                     53,618,998                9,082,200         2,902,518                 -                  16,462,703          1,760,804          (27,149,438)         56,677,785           

Long-term debt and capital lease

          obligations, net of current portion 49,708,745            25,860,313         9,400,372           -                          84,969,430           -                      -                     84,969,430                -                   324,447                    -                  1,341,288           -                    -                      86,635,165           

Estimated self-insurance liabilities 1,941,899              548,842              233,277              -                          2,724,018             -                      -                     2,724,018                 -                   -                            -                  -                      3,587,320          -                      6,311,338             

Accrued pension and postretirement benefits 43,370,197            13,402,108         -                      -                          56,772,305           -                      -                     56,772,305                -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      56,772,305           

Estimated settlements due to third-party 

            payers, net of current portion -                        -                     335,416              -                          335,416                -                      -                     335,416                    -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      335,416                

Other liabilities 266,121                 125,749              -                      -                          391,870                4,153                  -                     396,023                    -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      396,023                

Total liabilities 135,892,846          53,376,169         11,723,510          (2,464,200)              198,528,325         287,865              -                     198,816,190              9,082,200         3,226,965                 -                  17,803,991          5,348,124          (27,149,438)         207,128,032         

Net assets (deficit):

Unrestricted 3,473,307              24,688,727         3,997,833           -                          32,159,867           1,784,983           -                     33,944,850                (27,691)             241,789                    -                  4,690,415           3,510,183          (543,590)              41,815,956           

Temporarily restricted 988,702                 912,532              73,487                -                          1,974,721             7,454,317           (5,105,383)          4,323,655                 -                   -                            -                  275,242              -                    (2,348,934)           2,249,963             

Permanently restricted 7,679,633              3,416,105           -                      -                          11,095,738           1,567,312           (1,567,312)          11,095,738                -                   -                            -                  -                      -                    -                      11,095,738           

Total net assets (deficit) 12,141,642            29,017,364         4,071,320           -                          45,230,326           10,806,612          (6,672,695)          49,364,243                (27,691)             241,789                    -                  4,965,657           3,510,183          (2,892,524)           55,161,657           

Total liabilities and net assets 148,034,488$        82,393,533$       15,794,830$        (2,464,200)$            243,758,651$        11,094,477$        (6,672,695)$        248,180,433$            9,054,509$       3,468,754$                -$                22,769,648$        8,858,307$        (30,041,962)$       262,289,689$        
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Subtotal

The ECHN Series C, Eastern

The Rockville ECHN Subtotal Community Series D, ECHN ECHN ECHN Connecticut Connecticut

Manchester General ElderCare Series A Healthcare and Series  Health Enterprises, Wellness  Health Healthcare

Memorial Hospital, Services, Obligated Foundation, E Obligated Services, Inc. and Services, Network, Insurance

Hospital Inc. Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Subsidiaries Inc. Inc. Company Eliminations Total

Revenues:

  Net patient service revenues 166,602,261$        63,387,116$        14,647,939$      -$                    244,637,316$        -$                   -$                    244,637,316$        15,639,457$      -$                   1,072,103$        -$                   -$                   -$                    261,348,876$        

  Contributions 455,096                 237,954               20,224               -                      713,274                 -                     -                      713,274                -                     -                     18,982               296,332             -                     (296,332)              732,256                

  Other revenues 12,214,756            4,507,057            186,575             (1,496,005)           15,412,383            830,979              (719,211)              15,524,151           8,082,679          627,766             53,726               2,669,854          2,833,383          (11,683,629)         18,107,930           

  Net assets released from restrictions used for operations 478,506                 48,044                 250                    -                      526,800                 266,386              -                      793,186                -                     -                     7,395                 542                    -                     -                      801,123                

           Total revenues 179,750,619          68,180,171          14,854,988        (1,496,005)           261,289,773          1,097,365           (719,211)              261,667,927         23,722,136        627,766             1,152,206          2,966,728          2,833,383          (11,979,961)         280,990,185         

Expenses:

  Salaries and wages 77,581,560            29,535,778          6,983,892          -                      114,101,230          499,695              (327,539)              114,273,386         19,498,733        -                     446,025             10,907,025        -                     (10,907,030)         134,218,139         

  Fringe benefits 21,779,464            8,838,640            2,285,123          -                      32,903,227            116,068              (315,378)              32,703,917           2,892,399          -                     100,539             2,074,933          -                     (2,074,933)           35,696,855           

  Supplies and other expenses 58,149,870            21,930,029          4,112,353          (1,496,005)           82,696,247            481,602              (76,294)                83,101,555           5,980,385          549,507             351,095             (10,624,685)       2,871,947          1,572,892            83,802,696           

  Provision for bad debts 6,164,670              2,925,278            178,000             -                      9,267,948              -                     -                      9,267,948             1,832,115          -                     6,417                 -                     -                     -                      11,106,480           

  Depreciation and amortization 7,107,904              3,672,297            543,591             -                      11,323,792            -                     -                      11,323,792           396,849             92,050               86,227               199,046             -                     (199,046)              11,898,918           

  Interest and financing costs 2,539,198              1,115,177            528,704             -                      4,183,079              -                     -                      4,183,079             15,977               23,543               1,821                 202,857             -                     (202,857)              4,224,420             

           Total expenses 173,322,666          68,017,199          14,631,663        (1,496,005)           254,475,523          1,097,365           (719,211)              254,853,677         30,616,458        665,100             992,124             2,759,176          2,871,947          (11,810,974)         280,947,508         

Income (loss) from operations 6,427,953              162,972               223,325             -                      6,814,250              -                     -                      6,814,250             (6,894,322)         (37,334)              160,082             207,552             (38,564)              (168,987)              42,677                  

Non-operating (losses) gains (364,307)               (855,256)              26,536               -                      (1,193,027)             -                     -                      (1,193,027)            -                     (148,406)            (162)                   (207,552)            (91,329)              298,880               (1,341,596)            

           Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 6,063,646$            (692,284)$            249,861$           -$                   5,621,223$            -$                  -$                   5,621,223$           (6,894,322)$       (185,740)$          159,920$           -$                  (129,893)$          129,893$             (1,298,919)$          
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See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 
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Subtotal

The ECHN Series C, Eastern

The Rockville ECHN Subtotal Community Series D, ECHN ECHN ECHN Connecticut Connecticut

Manchester General ElderCare Series A Healthcare and Series  Health Enterprises, Wellness  Health Healthcare

Memorial Hospital, Services, Obligated Foundation, E Obligated Services, Inc. and Services, Network, Insurance

Hospital Inc. Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Subsidiaries Inc. Inc. Company Eliminations Total

Unrestricted net assets:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 6,063,646$         (692,284)$           249,861$            -$                    5,621,223$              -$                   -$                     5,621,223$         (6,894,322)$        (185,740)$           159,920$            -$                   (129,893)$           129,893$              (1,298,919)$             

Change in unrealized (depreciation) appreciation 

 on investments (911,544)             (958,610)             (271,887) -                      (2,142,041)               3,839                  -                       (2,138,202)          -                      -                     91,106                (285,821)             (96,005)              -                       (2,428,922)               

Change in unrealized depreciation on joint ventures -                     -                     -                      -                      -                           -                     -                       -                     -                      -                     -                     (248,292)             -                     -                       (248,292)                  

Net change in interest rate swap agreement 167,734              1,509,597           -                      -                      1,677,331                -                     -                       1,677,331           -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       1,677,331                

Net assets released from restrictions for 

capital acquisitions 1,652,194           1,132,631           220,159 -                      3,004,984                -                     -                       3,004,984           -                      -                     -                     2,812                  -                     -                       3,007,796                

Equity transfer to ECHN (4,481,309)          (8,575,553)          -                      -                      (13,056,862)             -                     -                       (13,056,862)        -                      -                     -                     13,056,862         -                     -                       -                           

Equity transfer from ECHN 6,162,540           -                     -                      -                      6,162,540                -                     -                       6,162,540           6,894,322           -                     -                     (13,056,862)        -                     -                       -                           

Transfer of WCW to RGH -                     1,740,285           -                      -                      1,740,285                -                     -                       1,740,285           -                      -                     (1,740,285)          -                     -                     -                       -                           

Transfers (to) from other affiliates - net (147,612)             6,790                  3,872                  -                      (136,950)                  134,044              -                       (2,906)                -                      -                     1,235                  1,671                  -                     -                       -                           

Pension  and postretirement related adjustments (10,396,040)        (3,218,413)          -                      -                      (13,614,453)             -                     -                       (13,614,453)        -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       (13,614,453)             

Transfers between net asset classifications -                     -                     -                      -                      -                           -                     -                       -                     -                      -                     -                     67,091                -                     -                       67,091                     

           Change in unrestricted net assets (1,890,391)          (9,055,557)          202,005              -                      (10,743,943)             137,883              -                       (10,606,060)        -                      (185,740)             (1,488,024)          (462,539)             (225,898)             129,893                (12,838,368)             

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Contributions 308,877              55,652                4,095 -                      368,624                   1,324,168           (1,542,685)           150,107              -                      -                     17,453                112,762              -                     455,140                735,462                   

Investment income 17,339                9,785                  -                      -                      27,124                     41,436                -                       68,560                -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       68,560                     

Net assets released from restrictions for operations (478,506)             (48,044)              (3,209) -                      (529,759)                  (908,155)             644,728                (793,186)             -                      -                     (7,395)                (542)                   -                     -                       (801,123)                  

Net assets released from restrictions for -                     

capital acquisitions (1,652,194)          (1,132,631)          (220,159) -                      (3,004,984)               (3,007,797)          3,004,985             (3,007,796)          -                      -                     -                     (2,812)                -                     2,812                   (3,007,796)               

Transfers between net asset classifications -                     -                     -                      -                      -                           -                     -                       -                     -                      -                     -                     (67,091)              -                     -                       (67,091)                    

Change in unrealized (depreciation) appreciation on investments (26,748)              (62,933)              14,152                -                      (75,529)                    (684,234)             670,082                (89,681)              -                      -                     243                     -                     -                     -                       (89,438)                    

Transfer of WCW to RGH -                     24,082                -                      -                      24,082                     -                     -                       24,082                -                      -                     (24,082)              -                     -                     -                       -                           

Transfers from affiliates 915,801              633,488              49,646 -                      1,598,935                -                     (1,598,935)           -                     -                      -                     6,733                  (1,605,190)          -                     1,598,457             -                           

           Change in temporarily restricted net assets (915,431)             (520,601)             (155,475)             -                      (1,591,507)               (3,234,582)          1,178,175             (3,647,914)          -                      -                     (7,048)                (1,562,873)          -                     2,056,409             (3,161,426)               

Permanently restricted net assets:

Change in beneficial interest in trust assets (243,923)             (71,109)              -                      -                      (315,032)                  -                     -                       (315,032)             -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       (315,032)                  

           Change in permanently restricted net assets (243,923)             (71,109)              -                      -                      (315,032)                  -                     -                       (315,032)             -                      -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       (315,032)                  

Change in net assets (3,049,745)          (9,647,267)          46,530                -                      (12,650,482)             (3,096,699)          1,178,175             (14,569,006)        -                      (185,740)             (1,495,072)          (2,025,412)          (225,898)             2,186,302             (16,314,826)             

Net assets (deficiency), beginning of year 15,191,387         38,664,631         4,024,790           -                      57,880,808              13,903,311         (7,850,870)           63,933,249         (27,691)               427,529              1,495,072           6,991,069           3,736,081           (5,078,826)           71,476,483              

Net assets (deficiency), end of year 12,141,642$       29,017,364$       4,071,320$          -$                    45,230,326$            10,806,612$       (6,672,695)$         49,364,243$       (27,691)$             241,789$            -$                   4,965,657$         3,510,183$         (2,892,524)$         55,161,657$            

 



Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
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See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 
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Subtotal

The ECHN Series B, Eastern

The Rockville ECHN Subtotal Community Series C, ECHN ECHN ECHN Connecticut Connecticut

Manchester General ElderCare Series A Healthcare and Series  Health Enterprises, Wellness  Health Healthcare

Memorial Hospital, Services, Obligated Foundation, D Obligated Services, Inc. and Services, Network, Insurance

Hospital Inc. Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Subsidiaries Inc. Inc. Company Eliminations Total

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 6,996,083$             5,837,411$          1,175,799$          -$                         14,009,293$         2,785,632$           -$                      16,794,925$            485,610$           382,345$               221,221$         360,160$             1,294,145$          -$                        19,538,406$          

Current portion of assets whose use is limited 694,111                  256,662              219,888              -                           1,170,661             -                       -                        1,170,661                -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          1,170,661              

Accounts receivable - net 24,506,769             9,664,890           1,842,557           -                           36,014,216           -                       -                        36,014,216              2,975,050          -                        184,904           185,080               52,197                -                          39,411,447            

Inventory 2,570,091               1,499,178           46,006                -                           4,115,275             -                       -                        4,115,275                -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          4,115,275              

Due from affiliated entities 24,151,431             16,826,275          -                      (15,212,409)             25,765,297           1,147,181             -                        26,912,478              8,091,833          -                        3,665               1,367,880            -                      (36,375,856)            -                        

Current portion of estimated settlements

        due from third-party payers 359,760                  361,514              -                      -                           721,274                -                       -                        721,274                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          721,274                 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,489,763               229,941              307,134              -                           2,026,838             548,850                -                        2,575,688                1,255,424          14,259                   14,971             1,070,597            20,523                -                          4,951,462              

Total current assets 60,768,008             34,675,871          3,591,384           (15,212,409)             83,822,854           4,481,663             -                        88,304,517              12,807,917        396,604                 424,761           2,983,717            1,366,865           (36,375,856)            69,908,525            

Assets whose use is limited - net of current portion:

Donor restricted investments 1,686,438               2,071,703           -                      -                           3,758,141             5,227,887             -                        8,986,028                -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          8,986,028              

Board designated investments 6,413,845               6,955,185           -                      -                           13,369,030           4,107,538 -                        17,476,568              -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          17,476,568            

Investments held in trust for estimated

       self-insurance liabilities 2,651,750               -                      -                      -                           2,651,750             -                       -                        2,651,750                -                    -                        -                   -                      8,542,027           -                          11,193,777            

Beneficial interest in trust assets 5,044,846               1,958,351           -                      -                           7,003,197             -                       -                        7,003,197                -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          7,003,197              

Investments held under bond indentures 3,261,508               932,060              751,186              -                           4,944,754             -                       -                        4,944,754                -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          4,944,754              

Total assets whose use is limited 19,058,387             11,917,299          751,186              -                           31,726,872           9,335,425             -                        41,062,297              -                    -                        -                   -                      8,542,027           -                          49,604,324            

Interest in net assets of ECHN CHF, Inc. 4,852,903               2,673,866           324,101              -                           7,850,870             -                       (7,850,870)            -                          -                    -                        567,876           3,837,466            -                      (4,405,342)              -                        

Investments 7,370,130               7,694,671           1,959,555           -                           17,024,356           226,890 -                        17,251,246              -                    -                        387,990           3,374,960            -                      (3,374,960)              17,639,236            

Investments in joint ventures 3,825,778               2,854,826           -                      -                           6,680,604             -                       -                        6,680,604                -                    1,349,513              -                   9,170,783            -                      -                          17,200,900            

Property, plant and equipment - net 51,761,983             32,803,719          8,801,427           -                           93,367,129           -                       -                        93,367,129              1,753,381          1,495,574              280,548           463,230               -                      -                          97,359,862            

Other assets:

Estimated settlements due from third party

      payers - net of current portion 546,577                  1,014,755           -                      -                           1,561,332             -                       -                        1,561,332                -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          1,561,332              

Goodwill and intangible assets - net 180,000                  180,000              637,460              -                           997,460                -                       -                        997,460                   124,277             -                        -                   4,409,011            -                      -                          5,530,748              

Other - net 2,278,502               673,671              400,787              -                           3,352,960             518,037                -                        3,870,997                -                    -                        507                  253,007               407,284              -                          4,531,795              

Total other assets 3,005,079               1,868,426           1,038,247           -                           5,911,752             518,037                -                        6,429,789                124,277             -                        507                  4,662,018            407,284              -                          11,623,875            

Total assets 150,642,268$         94,488,678$        16,465,900$        (15,212,409)$           246,384,437$       14,562,015$         (7,850,870)$          253,095,582$          14,685,575$      3,241,691$            1,661,682$       24,492,174$        10,316,176$        (44,156,158)$           263,336,722$        



Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidating Balance Sheet (continued) 
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See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 
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Subtotal

The ECHN Series B, Eastern

The Rockville ECHN Subtotal Community Series C, ECHN ECHN ECHN Connecticut Connecticut

Manchester General ElderCare Series A Healthcare and Series  Health Enterprises, Wellness  Health Healthcare

Memorial Hospital, Services, Obligated Foundation, D Obligated Services, Inc. and Services, Network, Insurance

Hospital Inc. Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Subsidiaries Inc. Inc. Company Eliminations Total

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Lines of Credit 5,000,000$             -$                    -$                    -$                         5,000,000$           -$                     -$                      5,000,000$              -$                  -$                      -$                 1,905,000$          -$                    -$                        6,905,000$            

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 16,747,968             6,637,694           1,010,396           -                           24,396,058           104,829                -                        24,500,887              1,321,159          35,833                   47,176             246,908               119,743              -                          26,271,706            

Current portion of long-term debt 

and capital lease obligations 2,848,007               1,354,327           474,465              -                           4,676,799             -                       -                        4,676,799                -                    17,624                   89,498             305,597               -                      -                          5,089,518              

Due to affiliated entities 14,838,492             8,798,644           398,944              (15,212,409)             8,823,671             549,375                -                        9,373,046                13,392,107        2,418,843              29,936             13,863,400          -                      (39,077,332)            -                        

Current portion of estimated settlements

due to third-party payers 281,399                  142,494              -                      -                           423,893                -                       -                        423,893                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          423,893                 

Current portion of accrued pension

and other postretirement benefits 5,438,343               1,561,707           -                      -                           7,000,050             -                       -                        7,000,050                -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          7,000,050              

Other current liabilities 1,505,852               509,896              183,662              -                           2,199,410             -                       -                        2,199,410                -                    -                        -                   -                      2,450,989           -                          4,650,399              

Total current liabilities 46,660,061             19,004,762          2,067,467           (15,212,409)             52,519,881           654,204                -                        53,174,085              14,713,266        2,472,300              166,610           16,320,905          2,570,732           (39,077,332)            50,340,566            

Long-term debt and capital lease

       obligations, net of current portion 46,420,675             23,896,681          9,893,664           -                           80,211,020           -                       -                        80,211,020              -                    341,862                 -                   1,180,200            -                      -                          81,733,082            

Estimated self-insurance liabilities 2,344,478               574,030              118,726              -                           3,037,234             -                       -                        3,037,234                -                    -                        -                   -                      4,009,363           -                          7,046,597              

Accrued pension and postretirement benefits 39,765,402             12,225,592          -                      -                           51,990,994           -                       -                        51,990,994              -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          51,990,994            

Estimated settlements due to third-party 

         payers, net of current portion -                         -                      361,253              -                           361,253                -                       -                        361,253                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          361,253                 

Other liabilities 260,265                  122,982              -                      -                           383,247                4,500                   -                        387,747                   -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          387,747                 

Total liabilities 135,450,881           55,824,047          12,441,110          (15,212,409)             188,503,629         658,704                -                        189,162,333            14,713,266        2,814,162              166,610           17,501,105          6,580,095           (39,077,332)            191,860,239          

Net assets (deficit):

Unrestricted 5,363,698               33,744,284          3,795,828           -                           42,903,810           1,647,100             -                        44,550,910              (27,691)             427,529                 1,488,026        5,152,954            3,736,081           (673,484)                 54,654,325            

Temporarily restricted 1,904,133               1,433,133           228,962              -                           3,566,228             10,688,899           (6,283,558)            7,971,569                -                    -                        7,046               1,838,115            -                      (4,405,342)              5,411,388              

Permanently restricted 7,923,556               3,487,214           -                      -                           11,410,770           1,567,312             (1,567,312)            11,410,770              -                    -                        -                   -                      -                      -                          11,410,770            

Total net assets (deficit) 15,191,387             38,664,631          4,024,790           -                           57,880,808           13,903,311           (7,850,870)            63,933,249              (27,691)             427,529                 1,495,072        6,991,069            3,736,081           (5,078,826)              71,476,483            

                      Total liabilities and net assets 150,642,268$         94,488,678$        16,465,900$        (15,212,409)$           246,384,437$       14,562,015$         (7,850,870)$          253,095,582$          14,685,575$      3,241,691$            1,661,682$       24,492,174$        10,316,176$        (44,156,158)$           263,336,722$        
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Subtotal

The ECHN Series B, Eastern

The Rockville ECHN Subtotal Community Series C, ECHN ECHN ECHN Connecticut Connecticut

Manchester General ElderCare Series A Healthcare and Series  Health Enterprises, Wellness  Health Healthcare

Memorial Hospital, Services, Obligated Foundation, D Obligated Services, Inc. and Services, Network, Insurance

Hospital Inc. Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Subsidiaries Inc. Inc. Company Eliminations Total

Revenues:

Net patient service revenues 166,310,748$       64,174,022$         14,419,386$         -$                    244,904,156$        -$                    -$                     244,904,156$        16,458,025$      -$                   1,455,710$      -$                 -$                   -$                  262,817,891$      

Contributions 576,939                785,566                16,825                 -                      1,379,330             -                      -                       1,379,330             -                     -                     50,379             318,116            -                     -                    1,747,825           

Other revenues 9,770,550             4,457,055             406,089                (1,166,939)           13,466,755           765,797              (748,014)              13,484,538           7,156,904          564,554             84,724             3,197,213         2,778,188          (11,726,206)      15,539,915          

Net assets released from restrictions used for operations 100,773                23,672                 8,208                   -                      132,653                401,377              -                       534,030                -                     -                     3,392               1,687                -                     -                    539,109              

Total revenues 176,759,010         69,440,315           14,850,508           (1,166,939)           259,882,894         1,167,174           (748,014)              260,302,054         23,614,929        564,554             1,594,205        3,517,016         2,778,188          (11,726,206)      280,644,740        

Expenses:

Salaries and wages 75,116,354           29,677,566           7,155,224             -                      111,949,144         472,610              (302,885)              112,118,869         18,768,392        -                     624,051           10,008,343       -                     (10,178,061)      131,341,594        

Fringe benefits 20,990,484           7,309,138             2,090,479             -                      30,390,101           118,096              (369,557)              30,138,640           2,895,734          -                     135,721           2,239,929         -                     (2,447,017)        32,963,007          

Supplies and other expenses 57,220,650           19,963,391           3,938,814             (1,166,939)           79,955,916           576,468              (75,572)                80,456,812           4,746,988          537,674             437,207           (10,279,400)      2,520,620          2,854,585          81,274,486          

Provision for bad debts 6,712,599             3,601,814             50,000                 -                      10,364,413           -                      -                       10,364,413           1,106,570          -                     10,373             -                   -                     -                    11,481,356          

Depreciation and amortization 7,666,028             3,824,200             534,476                -                      12,024,704           -                      -                       12,024,704           322,080             92,049               117,150           632,170            -                     (632,170)           12,555,983          

Interest and financing costs 2,528,633             1,507,868             551,342                -                      4,587,843             -                      -                       4,587,843             21,861               24,223               6,059               26,269              -                     (176,269)           4,489,986           

Total expenses 170,234,748         65,883,977           14,320,335           (1,166,939)           249,272,121         1,167,174           (748,014)              249,691,281         27,861,625        653,946             1,330,561        2,627,311         2,520,620          (10,578,932)      274,106,412        

Income (loss) from operations 6,524,262             3,556,338             530,173                -                      10,610,773           -                      -                       10,610,773           (4,246,696)         (89,392)              263,644           889,705            257,568             (1,147,274)        6,538,328           

Non-operating losses (842,128)              (468,466)              (150,487)              -                      (1,461,081)            -                      -                       (1,461,081)            -                     (323,532)            (890)                (889,705)           (21,273)              910,978             (1,785,503)          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 5,682,134$           3,087,872$           379,686$              -$                   9,149,692$           -$                   -$                    9,149,692$           (4,246,696)$       (412,924)$          262,754$         -$                236,295$           (236,296)$         4,752,825$          



Eastern Connecticut Health Network, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
Consolidating Statement of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (continued) 

For the Year Ended September 30, 2010 
 

See accompanying independent auditors’ report. 
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Subtotal

The ECHN Series B, Eastern

The Rockville ECHN Subtotal Community Series C, ECHN ECHN ECHN Connecticut Connecticut

Manchester General ElderCare Series A Healthcare and Series  Health Enterprises, Wellness  Health Healthcare

Memorial Hospital, Services, Obligated Foundation, D Obligated Services, Inc. and Services, Network, Insurance

Hospital Inc. Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Eliminations Group Inc. Subsidiaries Inc. Inc. Company Eliminations Total

Unrestricted net assets:

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 5,682,134$         3,087,872$         379,686$            -$                    9,149,692$         -$                   -$                     9,149,692$         (4,246,696)$        (412,924)$           262,754$            -$                   236,295$            (236,296)$            4,752,825$         

Change in unrealized appreciation (depreciation)

 on investments 990,779              1,009,901           (35,754)              -                      1,964,926           13,073                -                       1,977,999           -                     -                     15,939                97,381                121,840              -                       2,213,159           

Other changes -                     (8,524)                -                     -                      (8,524)                -                     -                       (8,524)                (778,000)             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       (786,524)             

Net loss on interest rate swap agreement (61,076)              (549,680)             -                     -                      (610,756)             -                     -                       (610,756)             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     2,212                   (608,544)             

Net assets released from restrictions for 

capital acquisitions 17,830                73,957                16,268                -                      108,055              -                     -                       108,055              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       108,055              

Equity transfer to ECHN Health Services, Inc. (5,024,696)          -                     -                     -                      (5,024,696)          -                     -                       (5,024,696)          5,024,696           -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       -                     

Transfer (to) from other affiliates - net 43,741                24,554                3,218                  -                      71,513                (70,458)              -                       1,055                  -                     -                     830                     327                     -                     (2,212)                  -                     

Pension and postretirement-related adjustments (9,183,064)          (1,427,723)          -                     -                      (10,610,787)        -                     -                       (10,610,787)        -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       (10,610,787)        

           Change in unrestricted net assets (7,534,352)          2,210,357           363,418              -                      (4,960,577)          (57,385)              -                       (5,017,962)          -                     (412,924)             279,523              97,708                358,135              (236,296)              (4,931,816)          

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Contributions 675,875              9,274                  17,262                -                      702,411              2,567,486           (1,965,281)           1,304,616           -                     -                     4,951                  224,183              -                     (686,044)              847,706              

Investment income 16,121                1,858                  -                     -                      17,979                24,276                -                       42,255                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       42,255                

Net assets released from restrictions for operations (100,773)             (23,672)              (8,208)                -                      (132,653)             (559,956)             158,579                (534,030)             -                     -                     (3,392)                (1,687)                -                     -                       (539,109)             

Net assets released from restrictions for 

capital acquisitions (17,830)              (73,957)              (16,268)              -                      (108,055)             (108,055)             108,055                (108,055)             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       (108,055)             

Change in unrealized appreciation 

 on investments 53,036                -                     -                     -                      53,036                460,313              -                       513,349              -                     -                     625                     -                     -                     -                       513,974              

Transfer from affiliates 14,881                17,266                -                     -                      32,147                -                     -                       32,147                -                     -                     -                     (32,771)              -                     624                      -                     

           Change in temporarily restricted net assets 641,310              (69,231)              (7,214)                -                      564,865              2,384,064           (1,698,647)           1,250,282           -                     -                     2,184                  189,725              -                     (685,420)              756,771              

Permanently restricted net assets:

Contributions -                     8,524                  -                     -                      8,524                  -                     -                       8,524                  -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       8,524                  

Change in beneficial interest in trust assets 156,562              52,766                -                     -                      209,328              -                     -                       209,328              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       209,328              

           Change in permanently restricted net assets 156,562              61,290                -                     -                      217,852              -                     -                       217,852              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                       217,852              

Change in net assets (6,736,480)          2,202,416           356,204              -                      (4,177,860)          2,326,679           (1,698,647)           (3,549,828)          -                     (412,924)             281,707              287,433              358,135              (921,716)              (3,957,193)          

Net assets, beginning of year 21,927,867         36,462,215         3,668,586           -                      62,058,668         11,576,632         (6,152,223)           67,483,077         (27,691)              840,453              1,213,365           6,703,636           3,377,946           (4,157,110)           75,433,676         

Net assets, end of year 15,191,387$       38,664,631$       4,024,790$         -$                    57,880,808$       13,903,311$       (7,850,870)$         63,933,249$       (27,691)$             427,529$            1,495,072$         6,991,069$         3,736,081$         (5,078,826)$         71,476,483$       

 


